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The Orico Group consists of Orient Corporation (Orico or the Company), 14 consolidated subsidiaries and four 

associates accounted for by the equity method. The Orico Group’s main operations are consumer finance 

services. The Orico Group also offers a wide variety of other services to meet customers’ needs such as credit 

collection services, and credit-related outsourcing business. 

As one of the largest consumer credit companies in Japan, Orico provides installment credit services, credit 

cards and direct cash loans services, and bank loan guarantee services through a network of 110 domestic 

branches. These financial services are also available nationwide through more than 792,000 member merchants.

Orico’s business dates back to 1954, when Hiroshima Coupon was founded. In 1974, all businesses were merged 

and succeeded by Orient Finance, the former name of Orico, which was incorporated in 1951.

Profile

Cautionary Remark Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Statements made in this document with respect to Orico´s plans, strategies and beliefs, and other statements that are not 

historical facts, are forward-looking statements based on the assumptions and beliefs of the Company´s management in 

light of the information currently available to it and involve risks and uncertainties that may affect the Company´s future 

performance. Potential risks and uncertainties in Orico´s areas of business include, without limitation, social, economic and 

financial conditions.
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Masaaki Kono, President

Revenues and profits both rose during the year ended March 

31, 2017. Consolidated operating revenues increased ¥1.8 

billion year on year, to ¥213.6 billion, while consolidated 

operating expenses fell ¥2.1 billion, to ¥180.1 billion. As a 

result, ordinary profit grew ¥4.0 billion, to ¥33.5 billion, and 

profit attributable to owners of parent expanded ¥4.1 billion, 

to ¥28.6 billion. 

As key items within operating revenue, in “installment 

credit,” revenue fell ¥3.5 billion year on year, due to such 

factors as lower billings at new auto dealers. Conversely, 

revenue increased ¥2.7 billion in “credit card shopping” as 

a result of increased billings and revolving credit balances. 

In “bank loan guarantee,” a higher guarantee balance 

led to a ¥4.3 billion increase in revenue, and increased 

“settlement and guarantee” billings led to a ¥1.4 billion rise 

in revenue. These increases covered the lower revenues 

from “installment credit” and “direct cash loans,” and overall 

we maintained our upward trend in revenue. 

This was my first full fiscal year since being appointed 

president, so I made a special effort to focus my attentions 

on management. I am extremely pleased to report to our 

shareholders that as a result, we delivered revenue and 

profit increases.

The Orico Group is currently pursuing a five-year medium-

term business plan that concludes in the fiscal year ending 

March 31, 2020. During the year under review, which was 

the second year of this plan, difficulties became more 

pronounced in auto loans and shopping, as home renovations 

decreased. Nevertheless, we progressed according to plan 

thanks to the strengthening of Web credit stemming from 

an expanding e-commerce market, coupled with solid use of 

large-scale affiliated cards.

Against this backdrop, one notable success was the 

strengthening of our alliance with Mizuho Bank, Ltd., in 

the credit card business, which is an engine of growth. We 

began issuing the “Mizuho Mileage Club Card/THE POINT” 

in January 2017, thereby acquiring a new business channel 

with Mizuho Bank. This development is a major success, as it 

enables solicitation for card membership of customers who 

visit bank teller counters. In the fiscal year ending March 31, 

2018, the third year of our mid-term plan, we will continue 

to consider priority initiatives and focus on solicitation for 

“Mizuho Mileage Club Card/THE POINT,” working to create 

and reinforce engines of growth. 

By pursuing the measures in our medium-term 

business plan, we will further promote the 

“challenge of reform” and endeavor to enhance 

corporate value.

What were some of the fiscal year’s 

financial highlights?

We secured a steady rise in revenues 

and achieved higher profits.

Q.

A.

What is the state of progress on the 

medium-term business plan?

We made progress on creating an 

engine for sustainable growth in our 

scope of business and earnings.

Q.

A.
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the redemption by purchase of preferred stock is one of our 

important management challenges. Taking into account our 

profit plans for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2018 and 

other factors, and in view of the rise in the annual dividend 

ratio of the preferred stock scheduled to be increased in 

August 2017, interest rate risk in future and other factors, 

we bought back and redeemed 70 million out of 140 

million shares of 1st series class I preferred stock. We 

also implemented a year-end dividend of ¥2 per share on 

common stock and ¥11.35 per share on preferred stock. 

In order to continue paying stable and continuous dividends 

to our shareholders, we plan to steadily purchase and 

redeem preferred stock, assuming we secure sufficient 

shareholders’ equity to achieve sustainable growth and 

expansion in our businesses. 

I thank our shareholders for your ongoing support. 

June 2017

Of course we have to work to boost operating performance, 

but I think that having employees who are proud of the 

Company and cultivating human resources who derive 

creativity and a sense of challenge from an organization 

that is open and vibrant are linked with establishing the 

Orico brand. I also believe strongly that these factors are 

connected to the sustainable growth of the Orico Group. To 

introduce part of our initiatives that underscore this belief, 

in October 2016 we established the Diversity Promotion 

Office. In addition to the initiatives we have pursued on the 

active promotion of women, we are employing people with 

disabilities and exchange students, and stepping up our 

efforts to cultivate seniors and young people. In a move to 

create a company that is a rewarding place to work, we have 

initiated a program that encourages employees to become 

branch managers, thereby actively promoting employees 

who are capable and enthusiastic. We have three new branch 

managers as a result. We have also introduced a framework 

for evaluating difficult endeavors and bold challenges, and 

I am sensing the connection between these moves and an 

increase in employee motivation. 

Our basic policy is to maintain an appropriate level of 

shareholders’ equity and to pay stable and continuous 

dividends by strengthening our management base. Also, 

Masaaki Kono

President

What factors do you consider 

important in “creating an attractive 

company” as part of your effort to 

realize sustainable growth?

I believe that human resources from a 

vibrant organization with creativity and 

a sense of challenge are connected 

with establishing the Orico brand.

Q.

A.

Do you have any message for 

shareholders, such as the status of 

shareholder returns?

We reinstituted year-end dividends for 

the first time in 11 fiscal years.

Q.

A.
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Medium-Term Business Plan (from April 2015 to March 2020)

Contributing to the realization of prosperous lives and dreams for customers by having the genuine value of our existence be 

recognized by society and providing the best financial services and products that meet customers’ payment and settlement needs

Expand the business and achieve sustainable revenue growth by continuing the challenge of various reforms 

while maintaining established businesses as a solid revenue foundation

A company taking on challenges and continuing to grow while facilitating customers’ dreams

Our Aim

Basic Policy   Realize new “growth models” through the challenge of reform

Target Indicators

Outline of the Plan

(Billions of yen)

Expand the business 

and achieve sustainable 

growth

Operating revenues

Operating expenses

Operating profit

Profit

Consolidated basis

211.8

182.3

29.4

24.5

Fiscal 2016

(Actual Results)

240.6

193.2

47.3

40.0

Fiscal 2020

(Plan)

231.5

190.2

41.4

35.0

Fiscal 2019

(Plan)

213.6

180.1

33.5

28.6

Fiscal 2017

(Actual Results)

221.1

187.0

34.1

30.0

Fiscal 2018

(Plan)

(1) Thoroughly strengthen the top line (revenues) in expanding markets 

“Creation of growth engines”

1) Credit cards and direct cash loans business

Substantially expand the business and revenues by reinforcing product strength, promotional 

systems, and alliances

2) Bank loan guarantee business

Achieve ¥1.5 trillion in the outstanding balance of bank loan guarantee

3) Settlement and guarantee business

Grow and establish it as a core business using our strengths in credit and debt collection

(2) Further consolidate our position of top share in installment credit business

“Maintain stable growth”

(3) Take on new challenges to capture frontier fields

“Three approaches for further growth”

1) E-commerce transaction settlement needs

2) Business customers

3) Asian market

Key measures to support 

sustainable growth
2

Boost corporate value3

Carry out reforms 

in human resources 

and corporate culture

4

1
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Orico auto loans boast a top share of Japan’s auto loan market with 1.5 million autoloan users. 

At the end of fiscal 2017, the balance of Orico auto loans, including securitized loans, totaled 

¥1,753 billion. Through our original product development, we offer a wide variety of loans to meet 

the diverse needs of customers, ranging from loans for new and used domestic cars to those for 

imported vehicles. We broaden the automobile lifestyle options for our customers through offering 

convenient and reliable products such as flexible repayment loans, for which each customer can 

freely decide a monthly payment pattern in line with his/her individual million needs. We also 

offer auto lease guarantee products aimed at the consumer.

¥1,187

With about 50 years’ experience since our foundation, our outstanding shopping credit, including 

securitized loans, totaled ¥1,187 billion at the end of fiscal 2017. We are currently focusing our 

marketing efforts in two fields: housing renovation loans and student loans. We provide housing 

renovation loans for the installation of photovoltaic power systems, all-denka (complete home 

electrification), and other renovation needs. We provide student loans for the entrance fees and 

the tuition fees used to attend universities and vocational schools, as well as for other educational 

expenses. Currently, by offering web-based services, we are aiming to expand the billion 

transaction volume of shopping credit.

billion

Outstanding shopping 

credit of

The number of Orico card holders has surpassed 10 million. Our diversified credit card lineup 

meets a wide range of customer needs. In addition to issuing credit cards of the latest design and 

co-branded cards with various companies and organizations, we offer attractive point programs 

and Internet-based services. We are also developing cards with even greater functionality that 

are equipped with a contactless IC settlement service that enables speedy transactions where 

customers just wave the card over a dedicated card reader/writer without having to sign.

1.5
million

Auto loan users

10
million

Card holders

Auto Loans
Orico auto loans support the growth of Japanese motorization

Shopping Credit
Market-leading original product development capability

Credit Cards
Steadily growing credit card services

Orient Corporation4
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Orico is expecting future business expansion in the settlement and guarantee business and is 

promoting it as a new business field. Orico meets settlement needs in a wide variety of situations. 

This primarily involves alliance leases that can apply to low-cost equipment and machinery, 

receivables settlement guarantee services that make risk reduction and greater administrative 

efficiency during business-to-business transactions a reality, payment guarantee services that 

support the expansion of handling lease management properties, and payment-collection agency 

services that propose fee payments that match customers’ lifestyles.

¥1,382

Orico initiated the service of individual loan guarantees in 1983 through alliances with financial 

institutions. The allied institutions now exceed 500. They highly rate Orico’s guaranteed loan 

products, which address a wide range of financing needs in a timely fashion, and Orico’s 

accumulated expertise in assessments and guarantees.

As a result of Orico’s active efforts, the balance of bank loan guarantee has exceeded ¥1 trillion.

billion

Outstanding bank loan 

guarantee of

¥576
billion

Billings

Financial Activities

Stable fund-raising foundation established via the securitization of receivables

Since the first issuing of asset-backed securities (ABS) in Japan in 1996, we have strategically expanded our program to securitize receivables. As of March 31, 

2017, we had issued ABS including trust method totaled 500 times in the global ABS market. We have experience of issuance of ABS in Euro market 15 times 

between March 1998 and December 2006. And also we have issued auto loans ABS 6 times in the US market since September 2014. We are the first ABS issuer for 

Japanese company into the US ABS market. Furthermore we have issued many private offering ABS frequently in Japan. To date, we have securitized auto loan, 

shopping credit, student loan, credit card, and loan card receivables globally. These achievements are the result of our drive to increase securitized assets.

As a result, as of March 31, 2017, direct funding outstanding through ABS included trust method totaled ¥858.1 billion. Consequently, the securitization of 

receivables has become our mainstay fund-raising method, together with bank loans and credit guarantees.

We will continue to stably maintain the securitization of receivables.

Having won recognition for our regular public issues, the stability of our pooled assets and the full disclosure of related information, we will secure our status as a 

benchmark issuer in the ABS market.

Settlement and guarantee business
Focusing on the settlement and guarantee business as one source of future growth

Bank Loan Guarantee
Expanding the guarantee service for personal retail finance products

Orient Corporation 5



General Meeting of Shareholders 

Audit

Risk management,
deliberation of 
how to manage 
ALM, etc.

Election

Enhance compliance

Election Election

Appointment
Audit

Head Office

Branches

Management Meeting 

Committees

Board of Directors Independent Auditors
Nomination & Remuneration

Committee
Audit &

Supervisory
Board

Audit &
Supervisory Board

Members

Audit & Supervisory Board 
Member’s Office

Operational Auditing Department

IT System Auditing Office

President Operational Auditing Committee

Compliance Committee

Basic Concept on Corporate Governance

In line with Orico’s basic principles of aiming to be a company that 

“contributes to the realization of prosperous lives and dreams for 

customers by being recognized by society as having a genuine 

reason for existing and providing the best financial services and 

products that meet customers’ payment and settlement needs,” 

we aim to achieve sustainable growth and enhance corporate 

value over the medium and long term. To this end, we believe in 

the importance of ensuring management transparency and 

fairness to stakeholders, as well as swift and decisive decision 

making. We are undertaking initiatives to enhance our corporate 

governance, taking our management environment into account. 

The following organizational chart shows the corporate 

governance structure and the organizations etc. for management 

decision making, business execution and supervisory functions.

Overview of the Corporate Governance Structure

Orico has adopted an audit & supervisory board system, and has 

the Board of Directors and the Audit & Supervisory Board, which 

are statutory bodies under the general meeting of shareholders, 

and has established a management meeting. In addition, to 

achieve swiftness and efficiency of business execution in 

response to the dramatically changing economic situation and 

diverse needs of customers and member merchants, Orico 

introduced an executive officer system in June 2002.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is comprised of thirteen directors, three of 

whom are outside directors. The board meets every month, in 

principle, to make decisions on matters established by laws and 

regulations and important items related to management, as well 

as to supervise the status of business execution. Outside 

directors express their views, as appropriate, from an objective 

standpoint and broad-based perspective, and offer advice and 

recommendations on ensuring the appropriateness of 

management decision making. Furthermore, outside audit & 

supervisory board members conduct audits from the perspective 

of monitoring management from outside the Company, and 

thereby function sufficiently.

Orient Corporation6
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Remuneration for Directors and Audit & Supervisory Board Members

1. Total amount of remuneration, total amount of remuneration by type and the number of directors 

and audit & supervisory board members receiving remuneration by category

The total amount of consolidated remuneration per director and audit & supervisory board member is 
omitted. Please note that there is no director nor audit & supervisory board member receiving over 
¥100 million of total consolidated remuneration.

2. Total amount of consolidated remuneration per director or audit & supervisory board member

Category

258

34

55

246

34

55

11

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

12

3

8

Directors

(excluding 

 outside directors)

Audit & supervisory 
board members

(excluding outside audit & 

 supervisory board members)

Outside directors and 
outside audit & 
supervisory board members

Total amount of 

remuneration

(Millions of yen)

Total amount of remuneration by type

(Millions of yen)

Number of

directors and 

audit & supervisory 

board members 

receiving remuneration

Basic 

remuneration

Stock 

options
Bonus

Retirement 

benefits

Audit & Supervisory Board

The Audit & Supervisory Board is comprised of five audit & 

supervisory board members, three of whom are outside audit & 

supervisory board members. The board meets once a month, in 

principle, to conduct decision making of policies, plans and 

methods of auditing and other important matters related to 

auditing. Based on these decisions, each audit & supervisory 

board member audits the business execution of directors by 

attending important meetings, particularly the Board of Directors 

meeting, and investigating the status of business execution and 

management of property.

Management Meeting

The management meeting is comprised of the Chairman, the 

President, the Vice-President and other top managers of 

important organizations. In principle held once a week, the 

management meeting performs preliminary deliberation on 

matters that require resolution by the Board of Directors, and 

deliberates and determines important matters concerning 

business execution and business operation based on the basic 

management policy that was decided by the Board of Directors.

Overview of Internal Audits and Audits by Audit & 

Supervisory Board Members

The Operational Auditing Department, which fulfills the internal 

auditing function, is comprised of a staff of 28 employees. It 

periodically conducts internal audits of the business operations, 

accounting, compliance and other matters at each department of 

the head office, business office and 

subsidiary. With respect to the 

performance of the internal audits, the 

internal auditing section, audit & 

supervisory board members, independent 

auditors and the Internal Control Division 

engage in close collaboration, aiming for 

enhancement of the auditing system.

Orico has established an Audit & 

Supervisory Board Members’ Office as an 

organization under the direct 

management of the audit & supervisory 

board members. The office is comprised 

of two dedicated staff members whose 

role is to assist the duties of audit & 

supervisory board members. The office 

strives to strengthen the auditing system 

through actively exchanging information 

with the independent auditors and the 

specialized divisions in finance and accounting, as well as taking 

advantage of the wealth of insight in management, legal affairs, 

etc. possessed by each audit & supervisory board member.

Relationship between Orico and its Outside 

Directors and Outside Audit & Supervisory Board 

Members

The Company has three outside directors and three outside audit 

& supervisory board members. 

The conditions for outside directors are that they have extensive 

corporate management experiences; specialized expertise in 

areas including retail finance, economics, management, law and 

accounting; or deep insights into the circumstances surrounding 

corporate management. They are selected upon consideration of 

their superior ability to make management judgments based on 

these experiences and insights, and their ability to contribute to 

realizing appropriate decision making and management 

supervision by the Board of Directors from a broad-based 

perspective and an independent and fair standpoint. 

The conditions for outside audit & supervisory board members 

are that they satisfy the independence standards determined by 

the Tokyo Stock Exchange, Inc. and have the knowledge, 

experience and insight necessary to make judgments on the 

compliance and appropriateness of the execution of directors’ 

duties and reasonableness of accounting audits. They are 

selected upon consideration of their ability to contribute to 

ensuring the Company’s management soundness by providing 

valuable advice based on their experience and insight.

Orient Corporation 7



Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars (Note)

2017 2016 2017  

For the year:

Operating revenues ¥   213,693 ¥   211,804 $   1,904,572

Operating expenses 180,178 182,317 1,605,864

Profit before income taxes 34,099 29,362 303,912

Profit 28,690 24,582 255,704

At year-end:

Working capital ¥   850,635 ¥   641,545 $   7,581,417

Long-term debt 604,819 473,369 5,390,543

Equity capital 303,791 273,904 2,707,584

Total assets 5,329,058 5,152,900 47,496,060

Yen U.S. dollars (Note)

Per share data:

Basic earnings ¥        15.44 ¥        17.46 $             0.13 

Diluted earnings 15.43 14.30 0.13 

Cash dividends

Common stock 2.00 - -

Preferred stock:

1st Series Class I Preferred Stock 11.35 - -

Net assets 95.33 77.95 0.84 

Ratios:

Net profit margin 13.4% 11.6%

Return on average assets 0.6% 0.5%

Return on average equity 9.9% 9.4%

Equity ratio 5.7% 5.3%

Current ratio 120.1% 115.0%

Dividend payout ratio - -

Other:

Number of employees 4,456 4,416

Note:  U.S. dollar figures in this annual report are translated, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥112.20=U.S.$1, the approximate rate of exchange prevailing at March 31, 2017. See Note 1 on 

page 20.

Billions of yen

2017 2016 Increase/decrease

Consumer finance business

Installment credit

Auto loans ¥1,180.2 [1,753.1] ¥1,227.7  [1,660.5] ¥  (47.4) 92.5 

Shopping credit 861.9 [1,187.7] 851.8 [1,143.4] 10.1 44.3 

2,042.2 [2,940.8] 2,079.5 [2,804.0] (37.3) 136.8 

 

Credit cards and direct cash loans

Credit card shopping 119.1 [329.2] 107.4 [311.1] 11.6 18.1 

Credit card cashing 48.1 [105.6] 63.0 [113.2] (14.8) (7.6)

Direct cash loans 162.8 [207.3] 159.0 [203.0] 3.7 4.2 

330.2 [642.2] 329.5 [627.4] 0.6 14.8 

Bank loan guarantee 1,382.4 [1,382.4] 1,305.7 [1,305.7] 76.7 76.7 

Settlement and guarantee 66.6 [66.6] 40.2 [40.2] 26.4 26.4 

Other (Housing loans) 133.9 [143.4] 164.8 [176.0] (30.8) (32.5)

Total ¥3,955.4 [5,175.6] ¥3,919.9 [4,953.4] ¥   35.5 222.2 

Notes: 1.  The figures in parentheses show the balances including securitized receivables.

 2.  The total amounts in the above table are the total of direct installment receivables and guaranteed loan receivables in the non-consolidated balance sheets.

Consolidated

Operating Assets by Business (Non-Consolidated)
Orient Corporation 

As of March 31, 2017 and 2016

Orient Corporation8
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Non-Consolidated Operating Assets by Product (Including Securitized Receivables)

(Billions of yen)

Credit Cards

434

2017

424

2016

(Billions of yen)

Auto Loans

1,753

20172016

(Billions of yen)

Shopping Credit

1,187

20172016

(Billions of yen)

Bank Loan Guarantee

1,382

20172016

(Billions of yen)

Settlement and Guarantee

66

2017

40

2016

1,660

1,143
1,305

Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars (Note)

2017 2016 2017 

For the year:

Operating revenues ¥   201,526 ¥   199,799 $   1,796,131

Operating expenses 169,885 172,298 1,514,126

Profit before income taxes 32,112 27,387 286,203

Profit 27,138 23,139 241,871

At year-end:

Working capital ¥   838,295 ¥   630,775 $   7,471,434

Long-term debt 602,566 469,189 5,370,463

Equity capital 287,495 258,453 2,562,344

Total assets 5,252,718 5,081,940 46,815,668

Yen U.S. dollars (Note)

Per share data:

Basic earnings ¥       14.61  ¥       16.44 $              0.13   

Diluted earnings 14.60 13.46 0.13 

Cash dividends

Common stock 2.00 - -

Preferred stock:

1st Series Class I Preferred Stock 11.35 - -

Net assets 85.84 68.95 0.76 

Ratios:

Net profit margin 13.5% 11.6%

Return on average assets 0.5% 0.5%

Return on average equity 9.9% 9.4%

Equity ratio 5.5% 5.1%

Current ratio 120.1% 114.9%

Dividend payout ratio - -

Other:

Number of employees 3,658 3,701

Note:  U.S. dollar figures in this annual report are translated, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥112.20=U.S.$1, the approximate rate of exchange prevailing at March 31, 2017. See Note 1 on 

page 20.

Non-Consolidated

Orient Corporation 9



Expansion of Electronic Settlement Services 

for the Next-Generation Settlement

We were the only Japanese credit company 

to embrace Apple Pay at its launch in 

October 2016. We have also introduced 

Alipay to support demand from inbound 

Chinese visitors to Japan.

As one aspect of our medium-term plan initiatives, we conducted recruiting activities by 

making use of Athnavi, JOC’s* employment support system. Athnavi is an employment 

support system for top-level athletes designated by the JOC or JPC. It matches athletes 

seeking employment with companies looking to hire them. Aimed at bolstering corporate 

vitality, these recruiting activities enable the entire Company to support athletes, cultivating 

the sense of internal unity and boosting morale among individual employees. 

* JOC: Japanese Olympic Committee; JPC: Japanese Paralympic Committee

Japan’s Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry is promoting a public-private partnership initiative called 

“Premium Friday.” The gist of this initiative (which promotes a culture of finishing work a little earlier on the 

last Friday of each month) is to encourage individuals to take part in happy and enjoyable experiences and 

times. We will take advantage of this opportunity to promote corporate social responsibility, both by enhancing 

our services to customers and by developing measures targeting employees.

Recruiting Activities Making Use of JOC’s Employment Support System

Topic

1

Supporting the Employment of Athletes Creating a Vibrant Organization

Taking Part in the “Premium Friday” Initiative

Topic

2

Encouraging Personal Consumption Promoting a Work-Life Balance

Fostering Innovation through Financial Knowhow and Leading-Edge Technologies

Topic

3

Finance Technology

Globally Oriented New Business Development

To develop new business, we have 

entered a partnership agreement 

with Plug and Play Tech Center, a 

venture capital company from Silicon 

Valley in the United States. We will 

share information related to network 

construction and new technologies. 

Marketing Measures That Leverage Data

We have become the first Japanese credit 

company to join The CardLinx Association, a 

global association that promotes the card-

linked offer (CLO) promotion method, based 

on credit card usage information. In the aim 

of guiding customers to card merchants, 

we are stepping up initiatives to collect and make use of the most 

recent data with a view to the full-fledged introduction of CLO.

New Initiatives Leveraging AI

Hyper Cloud, an artificial intelligence 

(AI) tool provided by the ABeam Cloud 

business innovation platform, is the first 

in Japan to make use of credit screening 

analysis. We have also commenced 

internal verification testing using a 

chatbot for customer service. 

Orient Corporation10

Topics



213.6
76.4

73.8 45.2211.8206.3 79.983.3
42.4

73.471.9
40.6

201720162015 201720162015201720162015201720162015

(Billions of yen)

Business Revenue

(Billions of yen)

Revenue/Installment Credit

(Billions of yen)

Revenue/Credit Cards and 
Direct Cash Loans (Billions of yen)

Revenue/Credit Card Shopping

1. Overview of Operations

(1) Operating Results

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2017, the second year of the 

Company’s medium-term business plan that launched in the 

preceding year, we set a basic policy of “accelerating and putting 

the ‘challenge of reform’ fully in progress.” We stepped up the 

promotion of priority measures toward sustainable growth in the 

scope of business and earnings and took on a number of 

challenges aimed at realizing a new growth model to meet targets 

in the final year of our medium-term business plan.

Consolidated operating results in the fiscal year under review 

were as follows.

During the fiscal year under review, we added a fourth reportable 

segment, the settlement and guarantee business, to our three 

previous segments: the installment credit business, the credit 

cards and direct cash loans business, and the bank loan 

guarantee business. This addition was in line with the aim of our 

medium-term business plan to grow this fourth business. 

Year-on-year comparisons are based on the revised segment 

categories. 

Consolidated operating revenues increased ¥1.8 billion year on 

year to ¥213.6 billion.

In terms of performance by individual businesses, we achieved 

the following results. In the installment credit business, auto loan 

billings and shopping credit billings decreased so did business 

revenue.

In the credit cards and direct cash loans business, revenues from 

direct cash loans decreased, but operating revenues for the 

segment grew thanks to an increase in billings in credit card 

shopping and a steady rise in the revolving balance for credit card 

shopping. 

In the bank loan guarantee business, operating revenues 

increased underpinned by an increase in growth in the balance of 

bank loan guarantees.

In the settlement and guarantee business, operating revenues 

rose, due to increased billings in such areas as rent guarantees 

and small-lot lease guarantees.

Consolidated operating expenses decreased ¥2.1 billion year on 

year to ¥180.1 billion.

General expenses increased, but bad debt-related expenses and 

financial expenses fell, leading to an overall decline in operating 

expenses. As a result of recording a provision of allowance for 

losses on interest refunds of ¥6.7 billion in the fourth quarter 

based on refund amounts for overpaid interest and recent trends 

in refund conditions, the provision of allowance for losses on 

interest refunds amounted to ¥17.1 billion.

As a result of these factors, ordinary profit rose ¥4.0 billion year 

on year to ¥33.5 billion, and profit attributable to owners of 

parent increased ¥4.1 billion year on year to ¥28.6 billion on a 

consolidated basis.

Orient Corporation 11

Management’s Discussion & Analysis



39.3

35.0 24.5

17.4
32.0

22.9

18.4

6.8 28.6

15.4

5.3

4.4

201720162015 201720162015201720162015201720162015

(Billions of yen)

Revenue/Bank Loan Guarantee

(Billions of yen)

Revenue/Settlement and Guarantee

(Billions of yen)

Profit

(Yen)

Basic Earnings per Share

(2) Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents as of the end of fiscal 2017 were 

¥198.4 billion, an increase of ¥19.7 billion compared with the end 

of the previous fiscal year.

The respective cash flow positions in fiscal 2017 and the factors 

thereof are as follows.

(Cash flows from operating activities)

Cash used in operating activities in fiscal 2017 amounted to 

¥104.6 billion, an increase in cash used of ¥62.4 billion from the 

previous fiscal year. This mainly reflected an increase in trade 

receivables. In the fiscal year under review, funds procured 

through the securitization of receivables amounted to ¥574.2 

billion.

(Cash flows from investing activities)

Cash used in investing activities in fiscal 2017 amounted to ¥27.9 

billion, an increase in cash provided of ¥5.5 billion from the 

previous fiscal year. These funds were used mainly for the 

purchase of intangible assets (software).

(Cash flows from financing activities)

Cash provided by financing activities in fiscal 2017 amounted to 

¥152.4 billion, an increase in cash provided of ¥40.6 billion 

compared with the previous fiscal year. The main sources of cash 

were increases in long-term bank loans and issuance of bonds.

(3) Operations of Principal Businesses

Business revenues increased 1.0% from the previous fiscal year 

to ¥207.5 billion in fiscal 2017. A breakdown of the business 

revenues is as follows:

Installment credit business

In the installment credit business, we focused on strengthening 

our promotion for large-scale partner companies and improving 

customer convenience such as by providing various service 

products that utilize the Internet.

In auto loans, we expanded our product offerings to meet 

customer needs, leading to favorable performance in auto leases, 

but a decline in new auto dealer billings led to lower business 

revenues. 

In shopping credit, we concentrated on initiatives to meet 

e-commerce settlement needs. However, revenues decreased due 

to lower billings for home renovations, stemming from a 

lackluster market for solar power generation systems.

As a result, revenues in the installment credit business decreased 

4.4% year on year to ¥76.4 billion.

Business

Fiscal 2016 Fiscal 2017 Change

Amount 

(Billions of yen)

Amount 

(Billions of yen)
(%)

Installment credit 79.9 76.4 (4.4)

Credit cards and direct cash loans

[Of which: credit card shopping]

73.4

[42.4]

73.8

[45.2]

0.6

[6.6]

Bank loan guarantee 35.0 39.3 12.3

Settlement and guarantee 5.3 6.8 28.0

Other 11.8 11.0 (6.5)

Total 205.5 207.5 1.0

(Reference) Breakdown of business revenues by business
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Credit cards and direct cash loans business

In credit card shopping, billings increased, due in part to 

measures to promote use by large-scale partner companies, and 

the balance of card shopping revolving credit rose steadily, 

leading to higher revenues. 

With regard to the issuance of new cards, we saw a steady 

increase in card issuance for “Orico Card THE POINT,” which 

offers a higher ratio of reward points per purchase. We also 

began soliciting members for the “Mizuho Mileage Club Card/THE 

POINT,” which comes with Mizuho Mileage Club “Happy Benefits.” 

In addition, we launched an acquiring business through an 

alliance with Alipay, a leading Chinese provider of electronic 

settlement services. Through this business and our facilitation of 

the Apple Pay mobile settlement service, we focused on offering 

additional convenience to customers. As a FinTech initiative, we 

entered a partnership agreement aimed at new business 

development with Plug and Play Tech Center of Silicon Valley in 

the United States. 

In direct cash loans, although revenues declined, we continued to 

concentrate on preferential interest rate measures and 

promotions targeting individual customer segments according to 

usage status. 

As a result, revenues in the credit card shopping increased 6.6% 

year on year to ¥45.2 billion, and revenues from direct cash loans 

declined 7.4% year on year to ¥28.6 billion. Total revenues in the 

credit cards and direct cash loans business rose 0.6% from the 

previous fiscal year to ¥73.8 billion.

Bank loan guarantee business

In the bank loan guarantee business, revenues rose as the bank 

loan guarantee balance continued to increase. We strengthened 

comprehensive proposals, providing a broad range of products to 

meet financial institutions’ needs and introducing effective 

measures to expand loans. We also saw a steady increase in 

alliances for our Web scheme that allows all contract procedures 

to be performed via websites. 

As a result, revenues in the bank loan guarantee business rose 

12.3% year on year to ¥39.3 billion.

Settlement and guarantee business

In the settlement and guarantee business, we enhanced 

promotions targeting rent guarantees at large-scale partner 

companies and increased in the number of allied agencies in the 

area of small-lot lease guarantees, pushing up billings and 

revenues. 

As a result, revenues in the settlement and guarantee business 

rose 28.0% year on year to ¥6.8 billion.

Other businesses

Group companies, comprising two servicer companies including 

Japan Collection Service Co., Ltd., and those involved in 

outsourcing services in credit-related operations and information 

processing services worked to grow their core businesses, 

expand peripheral operations and augment productivity through 

intragroup collaboration. 

As a result, revenues in other businesses declined 6.5% year on 

year to ¥11.0 billion.
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Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

(Note 1)

2017 2016 2017

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and bank deposits (Notes 15 and 19) ¥   198,498 ¥   178,792 $  1,769,144

Finance receivables, including amounts maturing after one year:

Direct installment receivables (Notes 4 and 15) 959,525 842,201 8,551,916

Guaranteed loan receivables (Notes 5 and 15) 3,047,722 3,123,649 27,163,297

Beneficiary certificates retained for receivable securitization 

(Notes 6, 9 and 15)
494,810 460,157 4,410,071

Advance payments for guaranteeing collection 407,174 342,422 3,629,001

Other receivables 463 505 4,126

Less: Allowance for credit losses (Note 2 (3)) (137,970) (144,192) (1,229,679)

 4,970,224 4,803,536 44,297,896

   

Real estate for sale (Notes 2 (6) and 9) 1,609 1,170 14,340

Inventories (Note 7) 880 1,101 7,843

Deferred tax assets (Notes 2 (17) and 10) 14,193 14,247 126,497

Other current assets 89,779 105,805 800,169

Total current assets 5,076,687 4,925,861 45,246,764

Property and Equipment:

Land (Note 9) 73,422 74,976 654,385

Buildings and structures (Notes 2 (7), (16) and 9) 56,685 55,734 505,213

Machinery, equipment and vehicles (Note 2 (7)) 52 61 463

Lease assets (Note 2 (9)) 5,695 4,272 50,757

Construction in progress — 268 —

Other (Note 2 (7)) 3,378 3,375 30,106

139,233 138,690 1,240,935

Less: Accumulated depreciation (35,175) (33,625) (313,502)

Property and equipment, net 104,057 105,064 927,424

Investments, Advances and Other Assets:

Investment securities (Notes 2 (5), 3 and 15) 11,558 8,610 103,012

Long-term loans receivable 2,400 — 21,390

Long-term advances to employees 17 25 151

Defined benefit assets (Notes 2 (4) and 11) 1,732 1,909 15,436

Deferred tax assets (Notes 2 (17) and 10) 3,800 4,892 33,868

Intangible assets    

Goodwill (Note 2 (12)) 32 94 285

Other intangible assets (Note 2 (8)) 117,327 96,167 1,045,695

Deferred assets

Bond issue cost (Note 2 (10)) 628 383 5,597

Other assets 10,814 9,890 96,381

Total investments, advances and other assets 148,312 121,974 1,321,853

Total Assets ¥5,329,058 ¥5,152,900 $47,496,060

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

(Note 1)

2017 2016 2017

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Short-term bank loans (Notes 9, 15 and 16) ¥      47,736 ¥      42,130 $      425,454

Current portion of long-term debt (Notes 9 and 15) 269,266 315,251 2,399,875

Notes and accounts payable (Note 15) 521,760 458,081 4,650,267

Guaranteed loan payables (Note 5) 3,047,722 3,123,649 27,163,297

Current portion of lease obligations (Note 9) 1,114 730 9,928

Unearned finance income (Note 2 (2)) 17,734 17,482 158,057

Income taxes payable 3,588 5,039 31,978

Accrued bonuses (Note 2 (3)) 3,936 3,431 35,080

Allowance for point program (Note 2 (3)) 789 — 7,032

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (Notes 9 and 15) 312,403 318,519 2,784,340

Total current liabilities 4,226,052 4,284,316 37,665,347

Long-Term Liabilities:

Unsecured corporate bonds (Notes 9 and 15) 150,000 80,015 1,336,898

Long-term debt (Notes 9 and 15) 604,819 473,369 5,390,543

Long-term debt under securitization of receivables (Notes 8 and 9) 2,400 — 21,390

Lease obligations (Note 9) 1,901 1,453 16,942

Accrued retirement benefits to directors and corporate auditors (Note 2 (3)) 34 31 303

Allowance for point program (Note 2 (3)) 3,632 3,647 32,370

Allowance for losses on interest refunds (Note 2 (3)) 25,547 23,677 227,691

Defined benefit liabilities (Notes 2 (4) and 11) 5,921 6,926 52,771

Other long-term liabilities (Notes 9, 15 and 16) 4,840 5,438 43,137

Total long-term liabilities 799,097 594,559 7,122,076

Total liabilities 5,025,149 4,878,876 44,787,424

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (Note 12)

Net Assets (Note 13):

Shareholders’ equity:

Capital stock 150,028 150,015 1,337,147

Capital surplus 872 859 7,771

Retained earnings 147,206 118,516 1,311,996

Treasury stock, at cost (14) (15) (124)

Total shareholders’ equity 298,092 269,377 2,656,791

Accumulated other comprehensive income:

Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities 2,338 596 20,837

Deferred losses on hedges (272) (410) (2,424)

Foreign currency translation adjustments (53) (60) (472)

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 3,685 4,400 32,843

Total accumulated other comprehensive income 5,698 4,526 50,784

Subscription rights to shares 96 98 855

Non-controlling interests 21 21 187

Total net assets 303,908 274,023 2,708,627

Total Liabilities and Net Assets ¥5,329,058 ¥5,152,900 $47,496,060

 Yen

U.S. dollars

(Note 1)

Per Share:

Net assets, adjusted—basic ¥95.33 ¥77.95 $0.84

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

Consolidated Balance Sheet
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Consolidated Statements of Income
Orient Corporation and Subsidiaries

For the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016

Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

(Note 1)

2017 2016 2017

Operating Revenues:

Consumer finance service revenue (Notes 2 (1) and 17) ¥198,736 ¥196,317 $1,771,265

Non-finance service revenue 8,806 9,247 78,484

Interest and dividend income 148 143 1,319

Other finance income 991 681 8,832

Other operating revenues 5,010 5,413 44,652

213,693 211,804 1,904,572

Operating Expenses:

Selling, general and administrative expenses (Note 18) 170,966 171,037 1,523,761

Interest expenses 7,497 9,391 66,818

Other financial expenses 1,053 1,536 9,385

Other operating expenses 660 352 5,882

180,178 182,317 1,605,864

Operating profit 33,515 29,486 298,707

Special Gain (Loss):

Gain on sales of property and equipment 163 — 1,452

Gain on sales of investment securities 972 14 8,663

Compensation for eviction 160 — 1,426

Loss on sales of property and equipment (307) (108) (2,736)

Loss on retirement of property and equipment (5) (18) (44)

Loss on retirement of software (393) — (3,502)

Loss on sales of investment securities (6) (11) (53)

Profit before Income Taxes 34,099 29,362 303,912

Income Taxes (Note 10):

Current 5,028 4,870 44,812

Deferred 381 (90) 3,395

5,409 4,780 48,208

Profit 28,690 24,582 255,704

Profit Attributable to:

Non-controlling interests — 4 —

Owners of parent ¥  28,690 ¥  24,577 $   255,704

Yen

U.S. dollars

(Note 1)

Per Share (Notes 2 (14) and 23):

Basic earnings (common stock) ¥15.44 ¥17.46 $0.13

Basic earnings (preferred stock) 15.44 — 0.13

Diluted earnings 15.43 14.30 0.13

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Orient Corporation and Subsidiaries

For the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016

Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

(Note 1)

2017 2016 2017

Profit ¥28,690 ¥24,582 $255,704

Other Comprehensive Income (Note 20):

Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities 1,740 (95) 15,508

Deferred gains (losses) on hedges 137 (275) 1,221

Foreign currency translation adjustments 6 (63) 53

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans, net of tax (714) (119) (6,363)

Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for using equity method 1 (0) 8

Total other comprehensive income 1,171 (553) 10,436

Comprehensive Income ¥29,861 ¥24,028 $266,140

Comprehensive Income Attributable to:

Owners of parent ¥29,861 ¥24,028 $266,140

Non-controlling interests 0 0 0

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Orient Corporation and Subsidiaries

For the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016

Millions of yen

Shareholders’ equity Accumulated other comprehensive income

Capital

stock

Capital 

surplus

Retained 

earnings

Treasury 

stock, at cost

Total 

shareholders’ 

equity

Valuation 

difference on 

available-

for-sale 

securities

Deferred 

losses on 

hedges

Foreign 

currency 

translation 

adjustments

Remeasurements 

of defined benefit 

plans

Total 

accumulated 

other 

comprehensive 

income

Subscription 

rights to 

shares

Non-

controlling 

interests

Total net 

assets

Balance at April 1, 2015 ¥150,013 ¥848 ¥  93,938 ¥(15) ¥244,784 ¥   691 ¥(134) ¥  — ¥4,519 ¥5,076 ¥80 ¥31 ¥249,973

Changes in the year from April 1, 

2015 to March 31, 2016

Issuance of new shares 

- exercise of subscription 

rights to shares 2 2 — — 5 — — — — — — — 5

Profit attributable to owners 

of parent — — 24,577 — 24,577 — — — — — — — 24,577

Purchase of treasury stock — — — (0) (0) — — — — — — — (0)

Disposal of treasury stock — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Purchase of shares of 

consolidated subsidiaries — 9 — — 9 — — — — — — — 9

Changes in items other than 

shareholders’ equity – net — — — — — (95) (275) (60) (119) (549) 18 (10) (541)

Total changes in the year from 

April 1, 2015 to March 31, 2016 2 11 24,577 (0) 24,592 (95) (275) (60) (119) (549) 18 (10) 24,050

Balance at March 31, 2016 ¥150,015 ¥859 ¥118,516 ¥(15) ¥269,377 ¥    596 ¥(410) ¥(60) ¥4,400 ¥4,526 ¥98 ¥21 ¥274,023

Changes in the year from April 1, 

2016 to March 31, 2017

Issuance of new shares 

- exercise of subscription 

rights to shares 12 12 — — 24 — — — — — — — 24

Profit attributable to owners 

of parent — — 28,690 — 28,690 — — — — — — — 28,690

Purchase of treasury stock — — — (0) (0) — — — — — — — (0)

Disposal of treasury stock — 0 — 0 0 — — — — — — — 0

Purchase of shares of 

consolidated subsidiaries — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Changes in items other than 

shareholders’ equity – net — — — — — 1,742 137 6 (714) 1,171 (2) 0 1,169

Total changes in the year from 

April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017 12 12 28,690 0 28,715 1,742 137 6 (714) 1,171 (2) 0 29,884

Balance at March 31, 2017 ¥150,028 ¥872 ¥147,206 ¥(14) ¥298,092 ¥2,338 ¥(272) ¥(53) ¥3,685 ¥5,698 ¥96 ¥21 ¥303,908

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)

Shareholders’ equity Accumulated other comprehensive income

Capital

stock

Capital 

surplus

Retained 

earnings

Treasury 

stock, at cost

Total 

shareholders’ 

equity

Valuation 

difference on 

available-

for-sale 

securities

Deferred 

losses on 

hedges

Foreign 

currency 

translation 

adjustments

Remeasurements 

of defined benefit 

plans

Total 

accumulated 

other 

comprehensive 

income

Subscription 

rights to 

shares

Non-

controlling 

interests

Total net 

assets

Balance at March 31, 2016 $1,337,032 $7,655 $1,056,292 $(133) $2,400,864 $  5,311 $(3,654) $(534) $39,215 $40,338 $873 $187 $2,442,272

Changes in the year from April 1, 

2016 to March 31, 2017

Issuance of new shares 

- exercise of subscription 

rights to shares 106 106 — — 213 — — — — — — — 213

Profit attributable to owners 

of parent — — 255,704 — 255,704 — — — — — — — 255,704

Purchase of treasury stock — — — (0) (0) — — — — — — — (0)

Disposal of treasury stock — 0 — 0 0 — — — — — — — 0

Purchase of shares of 

consolidated subsidiaries — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Changes in items other than 

shareholders’ equity – net — — — — — 15,525 1,221 53 (6,363) 10,436 (17) 0 10,418

Total changes in the year from 

April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017 106 106 255,704 0 255,926 15,525 1,221 53 (6,363) 10,436 (17) 0 266,345

Balance at March 31, 2017 $1,337,147 $7,771 $1,311,996 $(124) $2,656,791 $20,837 $(2,424) $(472) $32,843 $50,784 $855 $187 $2,708,627

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Orient Corporation and Subsidiaries

For the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016

Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

(Note 1)

2017 2016 2017

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Profit before income taxes ¥  34,099 ¥  29,362 $   303,912

Depreciation 6,690 7,334 59,625

Decrease in allowance for credit losses (6,222) (5,833) (55,454)

Increase (decrease) in accrued bonuses 505 (8) 4,500

Decrease in defined benefit liabilities (927) (1,097) (8,262)

Increase in allowance for losses on interest refunds 1,869 2,999 16,657

Interest and dividend income (148) (143) (1,319)

Interest expenses 7,497 9,391 66,818

Increase in trade receivables (77,605) (110,648) (691,666)

Increase in inventories (218) (262) (1,942)

(Decrease) increase in trade payables (12,249) 72,501 (109,171)

Increase (decrease) in unearned finance income 246 (2,689) 2,192

Increase in other assets (46,803) (43,737) (417,139)

Increase in other liabilities 3,456 11,135 30,802

Other, net (848) (578) (7,557)

Subtotal (90,657) (32,276) (807,994)

Interest and dividend received 393 377 3,502

Interest paid (7,556) (9,065) (67,344)

Income taxes paid (6,877) (1,314) (61,292)

Net cash used in operating activities (104,697) (42,279) (933,128)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Purchase of property and equipment and intangible assets (26,267) (20,797) (234,108)

Purchase of investment securities (1) (286) (8)

Proceeds from sales of investment securities 1,275 72 11,363

Payments of long-term loans receivable (2,400) — (21,390)

Other, net (569) (1,423) (5,071)

Net cash used in investing activities (27,962) (22,434) (249,215)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Net increase (decrease) in short-term bank loans 5,582 (15,740) 49,750

Net (decrease) increase in commercial papers (9,800) 27,500 (87,344)

Proceeds from long-term bank loans 416,087 392,284 3,708,440

Repayment of long-term debt (330,620) (338,084) (2,946,702)

Proceeds from issuance of bonds 69,625 49,725 620,543

Proceeds from long-term debt under securitization of receivables 2,400 — 21,390

Repayment of finance lease obligations (837) (4,283) (7,459)

Proceeds from sale and leaseback transactions — 420 —

Other, net (15) (35) (133)

Net cash provided by financing activities 152,420 111,787 1,358,467

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (54) (263) (481)

Change in cash and cash equivalents 19,706 46,808 175,632

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 178,792 131,983 1,593,511

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 19) ¥198,498 ¥178,792 $1,769,144

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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1. Basis of Presentation

(1) Accounting Principles and Presentation
Orient Corporation (the “Company”) and its domestic subsidiaries maintain their books of account in conformity with the financial accounting standards of Japan, and its foreign 

subsidiaries maintain their books of account in conformity with those of their countries of domicile.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries and associates (the “Companies”) are prepared on the basis of 

accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, which are different in certain respects as to the application and disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS), and are compiled from the consolidated financial statements prepared by the Companies as required by the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of Japan.

As permitted, amounts of less than one million yen have been omitted. As a result, the totals shown in yen do not necessarily agree with the sum of the individual amounts.

The U.S. dollar amounts shown in the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes thereto were translated from the presented Japanese yen amounts into U.S. 

dollar amounts at the rate of ¥112.20 = U.S. $1, the rate of exchange prevailing at March 31, 2017, and were then rounded down to the nearest thousand. As a result, the totals 

shown in U.S. dollars do not necessarily agree with the sum of the individual amounts. This translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts is included solely for 

convenience of readers outside Japan. Such translation is not intended to imply that Japanese yen have been or could be readily converted, realized or settled in U.S. dollars at 

that or any other rate.

Certain comparative figures in the prior year’s consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

(2) Scope of Consolidation
The Company had 14 subsidiaries (“controlled companies,” the decision-making body of the entity is controlled) at March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The consolidated 

financial statements include the accounts of the Company and all subsidiaries. The major consolidated subsidiaries are listed below:

At March 31, 2017

Equity ownership percentage, 

including indirect ownership

Capital stock

(Millions of yen/baht)

CAL Credit Guarantee Co., Ltd. 100.0 ¥  50

Orico Auto Leasing (Thailand) Ltd. 100.0 277

Orico Business & Communications Co., Ltd. 100.0 ¥100

Ohtori Corporation 100.0 ¥100

Japan Collection Service Co., Ltd. 100.0 ¥700

ORIFA Servicer Corporation 100.0 ¥500

(3) Consolidation and Elimination
For the purposes of preparing the consolidated financial statements, all significant intercompany transactions, account balances and unrealized profits among the Companies 

have been eliminated, and the portion thereof attributable to non-controlling interests is charged to non-controlling interests. All consolidated subsidiaries have the same fiscal 

year-end date as that for the consolidation.

The cost of investments in the common stock of consolidated subsidiaries is eliminated with the underlying equity in net assets of such subsidiaries. The material differences 

between the cost of investments and the amount of underlying equity in net assets of such subsidiaries are deferred and amortized within 20 years on a straight-line basis. If the 

difference is not material, it is directly charged or credited to profit for the year.

(4) Investments in Associates
The Company had four associates (“influenced companies,” financial and operating or business decision making of the entity that is not a subsidiary can be influenced to a 

material degree) at March 31, 2017 (four associates in 2016).

All associates are accounted for by the equity method, under which the Company’s equity in profit of these associates is included in consolidated profit for the years ended 

March 31, 2017 and 2016.

All associates accounted for by the equity method have the same fiscal year-end date as that for the consolidation.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(1) Recognition of Consumer Finance Service Revenue

(a) Consumer credit service
Customers purchasing goods from retailers with whom the Companies have sales finance arrangements (the “member merchants”) can use installment payments.

Commissions from customers for installment payments are recognized by the “sum-of-the-month-digits” basis over the relevant contract terms as the monthly installments 

become due under the contracts.

Commissions from member merchants for installment payments are recognized by the “in-a-lump-sum” basis on which commissions from member merchants are 

recognized as earned at the time installment contracts with member merchants are executed.

(b) Credit card shopping service
The basis of recognizing commission income is almost the same as (a) for consumer credit.

(c) Direct cash loan service
The Companies make direct cash loans to individual customers, which are to be repaid in installments. Commissions on such cash loans are recognized as earned on an 

interest-bearing basis as monthly payments become due. Card cashing is included in the direct cash loan service, and the commissions are accounted for on the same basis as 

those on direct cash loans.

(d) Guarantee and loan agent service
The Companies recognize guarantee fees on loans after deducting estimated amount of guarantee fee refunds.

(2) Unearned Finance Income
As described in (1) above, finance income (commissions from customers) except for guarantee and loan agent service is recognized as earned when the monthly installments 

become due. To achieve this, the commissions recorded as earned in their entirety at the inception of the contracts are adjusted at the balance sheet date, by setting up an 

unearned finance income account for the unearned portion of commissions applicable to installments which have not yet become due by that date.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(3) Allowances

(a) Allowance for credit losses and write-offs
Finance receivables are written off against the allowance for credit losses when installments have been unpaid for a certain specified period and/or uncollectibility of accounts 

is clearly demonstrated by conditions such as the customer’s bankruptcy, poverty, disappearance or other circumstances prescribed by the Companies.

Write-offs are recorded at the end of March and September.

At the end of each fiscal year, the allowance for credit losses is provided in an amount deemed necessary to cover possible uncollectible accounts based on historical data on 

credit loss and management’s judgment.

(b) Allowance for point program
Allowance for point program is provided to cover possible future expenses arising from the redemption of accumulated points on cards by cardholders and for installment 

points by customers at the end of each fiscal year.

(c) Allowance for losses on interest refunds
To cover interest refund claims for the interest rates charged in excess of the upper limit imposed by the Interest Rate Restriction Act, the Company has set up an allowance for 

losses on interest refunds at the end of each fiscal year. Provision for the allowance is estimated based on the historical amount of refunds, taking into consideration the recent 

refund conditions.

(d) Accrued bonuses
Accrued bonuses are recorded based on the estimated bonus payments to employees.

(e) Accrued retirement benefits to directors and corporate auditors
Accrued retirement benefits to directors and corporate auditors for the consolidated subsidiaries are provided for at an amount required in accordance with the rules at the end 

of the fiscal year.

(4) Retirement Benefits

(a) Method of attributing expected retirement benefits to periods
In determining retirement benefit obligations, the benefit formula basis is used for the method of attributing expected retirement benefits to periods.

(b) Accounting treatment of actuarial gains and losses and past service costs
Past service costs of the Company are recognized in profit or loss by the straight-line method over a certain period (13 years), which is within the average remaining years of 

service of the employees. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss by the straight-line method over certain periods (13 years for the Company and five years 

for a consolidated subsidiary), which are within the average remaining years of service of the employees, commencing from the following fiscal year.

(5) Financial Instruments

(a) Derivatives
The Companies adopt hedge accounting to all derivatives (see (c) Hedge accounting below).

(b) Securities
Securities held by the Companies are classified as available-for-sale securities.

Marketable securities classified as available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value with any changes in unrealized holding gain or loss, net of the applicable income 

taxes, directly included in net assets. Costs of securities sold are calculated by the moving-average method.

Non-marketable securities classified as available-for-sale securities are carried at cost determined by the moving-average method.

In cases where the fair value of available-for-sale securities has declined significantly and such impairment of the value is not deemed temporary, those securities are 

written down to the fair value and the resulting losses are included in net profit or loss for the period.

(c) Hedge accounting
Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the derivatives designated as “hedging instruments” are deferred as an asset or liability and included in net profit or loss 

in the period during which the gains or losses on the hedged items or transactions are recognized. The special treatment is applied to the interest rate swaps that meet certain 

criteria. For certain equity-method affiliates, the deferral hedge accounting method is adopted.

The derivatives designated as hedging instruments by the Companies are principally interest rate swap and interest rate option transactions. The related hedged items are 

interest rates on bank borrowings.

The Companies evaluate the effectiveness of their hedging activities by seeking the correlation of the benchmark interest rate fluctuation ranges between the hedging 

instruments and the related hedged items.

(6) Real Estate for Sale
Real estate for sale, in principle, is stated at acquisition cost, cost being determined by the specific identification method. In cases where the net selling value falls below the 

acquisition cost at the end of the period, real estate for sale on the consolidated balance sheet is written down to the net selling value, when profitability of assets has decreased. 

The Companies apply the non-reversal method which prohibits reversal of write-downs of inventories.

(7) Property and Equipment (Excluding Lease Assets)
Depreciation of property and equipment is calculated principally by the declining-balance method, except for buildings and other non-building structures, which are depreciated 

by the straight-line method (certain facilities attached to buildings and other non-building structures acquired on or before March 31, 2016 are depreciated by the declining-

balance method), over the estimated useful lives which are the same standards as prescribed by tax laws.

(8) Intangible Assets
Other intangible assets are mainly comprised of software for internal use, which is amortized by the straight-line method over the estimated internal useful lives of 5 or 10 

years. As for goodwill, please refer to 2 (12).

(9) Lease Assets
Lease assets under finance lease transactions which do not transfer ownership of the lease assets to the lessee are depreciated by the straight-line method over the period of 

the lease, with zero residual value.

(10) Accounting for Deferred Assets
Bond issue cost is amortized by the straight-line method over the maturity period.
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(11) Accounting for Leased Offices and Other
The Companies use offices leased under cancellable long-term lease agreements. In connection with such agreements, lessors in Japan require leasehold deposits relative to 

the amount of annual lease rental payments. Such leasehold deposits do not bear interest and are generally returned only when the lease is terminated. The lease terms are 

generally two years with options for renewals for a similar period, subject to renegotiation of lease rentals. Also, the Companies have cancellable long-term lease commitments 

for computer equipment and housing for employees. As the lessee of these cancellable lease commitments, the Companies charge the relevant lease rentals to income as 

incurred.

(12) Amortization Method and Amortization Period of Goodwill
Goodwill is amortized by the straight-line method over 20 years or less.

(13) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of cash flows are composed of cash on hand, bank deposits that can be withdrawn on demand and short-term 

investments with no significant risk of change in value that have original maturity of three months or less.

(14) Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by deducting the total amount not attributable to common stock shareholders from profit, divided by the weighted average number of 

shares of common stock outstanding exclusive of number of shares of treasury stock during the year.

The computation of diluted earnings per share reflects the maximum possible dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised 

or converted into common stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock.

(15) Consumption Taxes
Consumption taxes and local consumption taxes are accounted for by exclusion from transaction amounts. Consumption taxes paid not offset by consumption taxes received in 

accordance with Consumption Tax Act of Japan that arise from the purchases of tangible fixed assets are recorded as “Other assets” and are amortized over five years by the 

straight-line method.

(16) Changes in Accounting Policies
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries adopted “Practical Solution on a change in depreciation method due to Tax Reform 2016” (Practical Issues Task Force 

No. 32, June 17, 2016) as a result of revisions to the Corporate Tax Act of Japan. Accordingly, the depreciation method for both facilities attached to buildings and other non-

building structures acquired on or after April 1, 2016 was changed from the declining-balance method to the straight-line method.

The effects on profit and loss are immaterial for the year ended March 31, 2017.

(17) Additional Information
The Companies adopted “Revised Implementation Guidance on Recoverability of Deferred Tax Assets” (Accounting Standards Board of Japan Guidance No. 26, March 28, 2016) 

from the beginning of the year ended March 31, 2017.

3. Securities and Investment Securities

Investments in associates included in “Investment securities” at March 31, 2017 and 2016 were ¥4,570 million ($40,730 thousand) and ¥3,822 million, respectively.

Carrying amount on the consolidated balance sheet, cost and their difference of available-for-sale securities at March 31, 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

Millions of yen

 2017

Type

Carrying amount on the 

consolidated balance sheet Cost Difference

Securities whose carrying amount exceeds their cost

Equity securities ¥5,065 ¥1,694 ¥3,370

Bond securities — — —

Other 45 24 21

Subtotal 5,111 1,718 3,392

Securities whose carrying amount does not exceed their cost

Equity securities 347 382 (35)

Bond securities — — —

Other — — —

Subtotal 347 382 (35)

Total ¥5,458 ¥2,101 ¥3,356

Millions of yen

2016

Type

Carrying amount on the 

consolidated balance sheet Cost Difference

Securities whose carrying amount exceeds their cost

Equity securities ¥1,618 ¥738 ¥879

Bond securities — — —

Other 42 24 18

Subtotal 1,660 762 898

Securities whose carrying amount does not exceed their cost

Equity securities 672 720 (48)

Bond securities — — —

Other — — —

Subtotal 672 720 (48)

Total ¥2,333 ¥1,483 ¥849
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Thousands of  U.S. dollars

2017

Type

Carrying amount on the 

consolidated balance sheet Cost Difference

Securities whose carrying amount exceeds their cost

Equity securities $45,142 $15,098 $30,035

Bond securities — — —

Other 401 213 187

Subtotal 45,552 15,311 30,231

Securities whose carrying amount does not exceed their cost

Equity securities 3,092 3,404 (311)

Bond securities — — —

Other — — —

Subtotal 3,092 3,404 (311)

Total $48,645 $18,725 $29,910

Note: Unlisted equity securities (carrying amounts at March 31, 2017 and 2016 were ¥1,529 million ($13,627 thousand) and ¥2,455 million, respectively) are not included in the 

above table because there were no quoted market prices available and it is extremely difficult to determine the fair value.

Proceeds, gain on sales and loss on sales from the sale of available-for-sale securities for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

Millions of yen

2017

Type Proceeds Gain on sales Loss on sales

Equity securities ¥1,274 ¥972 ¥6

Bond securities — — —

Other — — —

Total ¥1,274 ¥972 ¥6

Millions of yen

2016

Type Proceeds Gain on sales Loss on sales

Equity securities ¥32 ¥14 ¥11

Bond securities — — —

Other — — —

Total ¥32 ¥14 ¥11

Thousands of  U.S. dollars

2017

Type Proceeds Gain on sales Loss on sales

Equity securities $11,354 $8,663 $53

Bond securities — — —

Other — — —

Total $11,354 $8,663 $53

For the year ended March 31, 2017, an impairment loss of ¥0 million ($0 thousand) was recognized for available-for-sale securities. For the year ended March 31, 2016, no 

impairment loss was recognized for securities.

4. Direct Installment Receivables

Direct installment receivables are recorded in an amount equivalent to the retail purchase price on installments, plus commissions charged by the Companies to the individual 

customers, or, as the case may be, at the principal amount of loans plus commissions charged to the customers computed by the add-on method.

Regarding cash advances on loan cards and credit cards, the unused facility balance (including securitized amounts) out of the total facility limit available to customers was 

¥1,497,786 million ($13,349,251 thousand) and ¥1,559,311 million as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The full amount of this unused facility balance may not necessarily be used since the Companies can deny loans to any customer when a reasonable reason exists, such as 

changes in the credit status of the customer, under the terms of the contract.

5. Guaranteed Loan Receivables (Payables)

The Companies have adopted a policy to show the outstanding balance of loan guarantees as an asset (“Guaranteed loan receivables”) and the same amount as a liability 

(“Guaranteed loan payables”) on the consolidated balance sheet.

The balance of guaranteed loan receivables represents the loans borrowed by customers from financial institutions under the Companies’ guarantee. The balance of this 

account represents monthly repayments which have not become due at the consolidated balance sheet date.

6. Beneficiary Certificates Retained for Receivable Securitization

Beneficiary certificates retained for receivable securitization include receivables such as securitized direct installment receivables.
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7. Inventories

At March 31, 2017 and 2016, merchandise and finished goods of ¥880 million ($7,843 thousand) and ¥1,101 million were included in “Inventories” in the accompanying 

consolidated balance sheet.

8. Long-Term Debt under Securitization of Receivables

Long-term debt under securitization of receivables is debt resulting from securitization of direct installment receivables.

9. Short-Term Bank Loans, Long-Term Debt, Lease Obligations and Others

The annual average interest rates applicable to short-term bank loans at March 31, 2017 and 2016 were 0.57% and 0.56%, respectively. 

The annual average interest rates applicable to commercial papers at March 31, 2017 and 2016 were 0.07% and 0.18%, respectively.

Short-term bank loans, long-term debt, lease obligations and others at March 31, 2017 and 2016 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2017 2016 2017

Short-term bank loans ¥  47,736 ¥  42,130 $   425,454

Commercial papers 176,400 186,200 1,572,192

¥224,136 ¥228,330 $1,997,647

Long-term debt from banks and other financial institutions, maturing through 2025 ¥874,086 ¥788,620 $7,790,427

Lease obligations 3,016 2,184 26,880

Guarantee deposits received and other 4,559 5,164 40,632

Long-term debt under securitization of receivables 2,400 — 21,390

Unsecured corporate bonds due on various dates through December 15, 2023 – generally at 

0.22 to 0.88% (0.30 to 0.88% in 2016)
150,000 80,000 1,336,898

Unsecured corporate bonds due on August 31, 2016 – at 1.16% * — 15 —

Less: Portion due within one year (270,381) (315,996) (2,409,812)

¥763,680 ¥559,987 $6,806,417

* These bonds were issued by KOUNAN Ticket Corporation, a consolidated subsidiary of the Company.

 

The annual average interest rates applicable to long-term debt from banks and other financial institutions at March 31, 2017 and 2016 were 0.83% and 1.16%, respectively.

The Companies’ assets pledged as collateral at March 31, 2017 and 2016 were summarized as follows:

Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2017 2016 2017

Beneficiary certificates retained for receivable securitization ¥2,400 ¥       — $21,390

Real estate for sale — 69 —

Buildings and structures 185 291 1,648

Land 570 1,448 5,080

¥3,155 ¥1,809 $28,119

The liabilities secured by the above assets pledged as collateral were summarized as follows: 

Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2017 2016 2017

Short-term bank loans ¥   170 ¥300 $   1,515

Long-term debt under securitization of receivables 2,400 — 21,390

Other long-term liabilities — 16 —

¥2,570 ¥316 $22,905

The aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt from banks and other financial institutions at March 31, 2017 were as follows:

Years ending March 31, Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2018 ¥269,266 $2,399,875

2019 207,612 1,850,374

2020 205,972 1,835,757

2021 105,576 940,962

2022 71,415 636,497

2023 and thereafter 14,243 126,942

¥874,086 $7,790,427
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The aggregate annual maturities of lease obligations at March 31, 2017 were as follows:

Years ending March 31, Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2018 ¥1,114 $  9,928

2019 899 8,012

2020 630 5,614

2021 260 2,317

2022 93 828

2023 and thereafter 17 151

¥3,016 $26,880

The aggregate annual maturities of other interest-bearing debt at March 31, 2017 were as follows:

Years ending March 31, Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2018 ¥176,400 $1,572,192

2019 — —

2020 — —

2021 — —

2022 — —

2023 and thereafter 2,400 21,390

¥178,800 $1,593,582

The aggregate annual maturities of unsecured corporate bonds outstanding at March 31, 2017 were as follows:

Years ending March 31, Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2018 ¥           — $               —

2019 15,000 133,689

2020 30,000 267,379

2021 25,000 222,816

2022 40,000 356,506

2023 and thereafter 40,000 356,506

¥150,000 $1,336,898

10. Income Taxes

At March 31, 2017 and 2016, significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities (both current and non-current) were as follows:

Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2017 2016 2017

Deferred tax assets due to:

Allowance for credit losses in excess of tax limit ¥  29,976 ¥   29,823 $   267,165

Impairment losses on fixed assets 8,297 8,544 73,948

Provision of allowance for losses on interest refunds 7,816 7,239 69,661

Defined benefit liabilities 2,052 2,694 18,288

Net tax loss carried forward * 57,631 62,982 513,645

Other 10,660 9,654 95,008

Total gross deferred tax assets 116,435 120,940 1,037,745

Less: Valuation allowance (97,121) (101,275) (865,606)

Total deferred tax assets 19,313 19,664 172,130

Deferred tax liabilities (1,319) (523) (11,755)

Net deferred tax assets ¥  17,994 ¥   19,140 $   160,374

* Deferred tax assets related to tax loss carried forward are recorded because the Japanese accounting standard requires that the benefit of tax loss carried forward be 

estimated and recorded as an asset with deduction of valuation allowance if it is expected that some portions or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Note Net deferred tax assets are included in the following items on the consolidated balance sheet.
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Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2017 2016 2017

Deferred tax assets (current assets) ¥14,193 ¥14,247 $126,497

Deferred tax assets (investments, advances and other assets) 3,800 4,892 33,868

Reconciliations between the statutory tax rates and the effective tax rates for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

2017 2016

Statutory tax rate 30.7% 32.8%

Add (deduct):

Valuation allowance (15.8) (22.1)

Per capita inhabitant tax 0.5 0.6

Entertainment expenses, etc., not deductible for income tax purposes 0.7 0.7

Adjustment to deferred tax assets due to changes in tax rates — 4.5

Other (0.2) (0.2)

Effective tax rate 15.9% 16.3%

11. Retirement Benefit Plans

(1) Overview of Retirement Benefit Plans
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries have funded and unfunded defined benefit plans and a defined contribution plan for employees’ retirement benefits.

The defined benefit corporate pension plans, all of which are funded, provide lump-sum or pension benefits based on salaries and the length of service. The lump-sum payment 

plans, which are unfunded (some of which are funded due to establishment of a retirement benefit trust), provide lump-sum benefits based on salaries and the length of service.

Certain consolidated subsidiaries use the simplified method, where the amount required for voluntary retirement at the end of the fiscal year is treated as retirement benefit 

obligations, to calculate defined benefit liabilities and retirement benefit expenses for their defined benefit corporate pension plans and lump-sum payment plans.

(2) Defined Benefit Plans

(a) Reconciliation between retirement benefit obligations at beginning and end of periods

Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2017 2016 2017

Retirement benefit obligations at beginning of period ¥50,919 ¥52,545 $453,823

Current service costs 1,746 1,829 15,561

Interest costs — 418 —

Actuarial gains and losses 372 586 3,315

Retirement benefits paid (2,592) (2,675) (23,101)

Past service costs — (1,849) —

Other 83 64 739

Retirement benefit obligations at end of period ¥50,530 ¥50,919 $450,356

Note The above table includes plans applying the simplified method.

(b) Reconciliation between plan assets at beginning and end of periods

Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2017 2016 2017

Plan assets at beginning of period ¥45,902 ¥46,139 $409,108

Expected return on plan assets 812 1,012 7,237

Actuarial gains and losses 273 (971) 2,433

Contribution from employer 1,229 1,300 10,953

Retirement benefits paid (1,877) (1,572) (16,729)

Other 1 (6) 8

Plan assets at end of period ¥46,341 ¥45,902 $413,021

Note The above table includes plans applying the simplified method.
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(c) Reconciliation between retirement benefit obligations and plan assets at end of period and defined benefit liabilities and defined benefit 

assets on the consolidated balance sheet

Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2017 2016 2017

Funded retirement benefit obligations ¥50,085 ¥50,522 $446,390

Plan assets (46,341) (45,902) (413,021)

3,744 4,620 33,368

Unfunded retirement benefit obligations 444 396 3,957

Net balance of liability and asset on consolidated balance sheet 4,188 5,017 37,326

Defined benefit liabilities 5,921 6,926 52,771

Defined benefit assets (1,732) (1,909) (15,436)

Net balance of liability and asset on consolidated balance sheet ¥  4,188 ¥  5,017 $  37,326

Note The above table includes plans applying the simplified method.

(d) Retirement benefit expenses and breakdown

Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2017 2016 2017

Current service costs ¥1,746 ¥ 1,829 $15,561

Interest costs — 418 —

Expected return on plan assets (812) (1,012) (7,237)

Amortization of actuarial gains and losses (475) (268) (4,233)

Amortization of past service costs (142) (142) (1,265)

Other 392 408 3,493

Retirement benefit expenses on defined benefit plans ¥   708 ¥ 1,232 $  6,310

(e) Remeasurements of defined benefit plans in other comprehensive income
Breakdown of items recorded as remeasurements of defined benefit plans, before tax, in other comprehensive income was as follows:

Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2017 2016 2017

Past service costs ¥(142) ¥ 1,707 $(1,265)

Actuarial gains and losses (574) (1,826) (5,115)

Total ¥(716) ¥   (119) $(6,381)

(f) Remeasurements of defined benefit plans in accumulated other comprehensive income
Breakdown of items recorded as remeasurements of defined benefit plans, before tax, in accumulated other comprehensive income was as follows:

Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2017 2016 2017

Unrecognized past service costs ¥(1,565) ¥(1,707) $(13,948)

Unrecognized actuarial gains and losses (2,127) (2,702) (18,957)

Total ¥(3,693) ¥(4,409) $(32,914)

(g) Plan assets

(i) Breakdown of plan assets
Percentages to total plan assets by major category were as follows:

2017 2016

Debt securities 40.2% 43.5%

Equity securities 46.4 46.8

Other (Note 2) 13.4 9.8

Total 100.0% 100.0%

Notes 1. Total plan assets include a retirement benefit trust established for lump-sum payment plans of 27.6% and 29.1% for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

 2. Other mainly includes life insurance general accounts and alternative investments.
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(ii) Determination of expected long-term rate of return
In order to determine an expected long-term rate of return on plan assets, the Companies consider current and expected allocation of plan assets and current and expected 

long-term rates of return from various assets constituting plan assets.

(h) Actuarial assumptions
Major actuarial assumptions (in weighted average)

2017 2016

Discount rate 0.0% 0.0%

Expected long-term rate of return 2.5% 3.0%

Note Actuarial assumptions include expected salary increase rates and other factors in addition to the above. The Company has adopted a point system.

      Expected point increase rates for the year ended March 31, 2017 were 0.8% to 16.4% (0.8% to 16.4% for the year ended March 31, 2016). Expected salary increase rates 

of certain consolidated subsidiaries for the year ended March 31, 2017 were 0.0% to 3.4% (0.0% to 3.4% for the year ended March 31, 2016).

(3) Defined Contribution Plan
The amounts to be paid by the Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries to the defined contribution plan were ¥319 million ($2,843 thousand) and ¥313 million for the 

years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

12. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

At March 31, 2017 and 2016, the Companies guaranteed housing loans of employees from financial institutions amounting to ¥520 million ($4,634 thousand) and ¥753 million, 

respectively.

13. Net Assets

(1) Common stock and preferred stock at March 31, 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

Thousands of shares Per share

Issued Annual 

dividend 

ratio *3

Liquidation 

value 

(yen)Class of stock Authorized

At April 1, 

2016 Increase Decrease

At March 31, 

2017

Stock Issued and Outstanding:

Common Stock *1 1,825,000 1,717,951 212 — 1,718,163 — —

1st Series Class I Preferred Stock 140,000 140,000 — — 140,000
+1.00% to 

+2.75%
1,000

1,965,000 1,857,951 212 — 1,858,163

Treasury Stock:

Common Stock *2 22 0 2 20 — —

22 0 2 20

*1. The number of outstanding shares of common stock increased by 212 thousand shares since subscription rights to shares (stock options) were exercised and common stock 

was issued in exchange.

*2. The number of shares of common stock for treasury increased by 0 thousand shares due to the purchase of shares less than one unit and decreased by 2 thousand shares 

due to the exercise of subscription rights to shares (stock options).

*3. Spread against yen TIBOR (six months).

Thousands of shares Per share

Issued Annual 

dividend 

ratio *5

Liquidation 

value 

(yen)Class of stock Authorized

At April 1, 

2015 Increase Decrease

At March 31, 

2016

Stock Issued and Outstanding:

Common Stock *1 1,825,000 816,193 901,757 — 1,717,951 — —

1st Series Class I Preferred Stock 140,000 140,000 — — 140,000
+1.00% to 

+2.75%
1,000

1st Series Class J Preferred Stock *2 150,000 126,240 — 126,240 — — —

2,115,000 1,082,433 901,757 126,240 1,857,951

Treasury Stock:

Common Stock *3 21 0 — 22 — —

1st Series Class J Preferred Stock *4 — 126,240 126,240 — — —

21 126,240 126,240 22

*1. The number of outstanding shares of common stock increased by 901,757 thousand shares since put options attached to 1st Series Class J Preferred Stock were exercised 

and 901,714 thousand shares of common stock were issued in exchange and subscription rights to shares (stock options) were exercised and 43 thousand shares of common 

stock were issued in exchange.

*2. The number of 1st Series Class J Preferred Stock decreased by 126,240 thousand shares due to the retirement.
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*3. The number of shares of common stock for treasury increased by 0 thousand shares due to the purchase of shares less than one unit.

*4. The number of treasury stock of 1st Series Class J Preferred Stock increased by 126,240 thousand shares due to the purchase for the conversion into common stock and 

decreased by 126,240 thousand shares due to the retirement.

*5. Spread against yen TIBOR (six months).

Holders or registered pledgees of preferred stocks are entitled to receive annual dividends and distribution of residual assets of the Company as set out above in priority to 

holders of the common stock but pari passu among themselves. The Company may pay one-half of the annual dividend payable on preferred stocks as an interim dividend. 

Dividends on the preferred stocks are not cumulative. Holders of preferred stocks are not entitled to vote at a general meeting of shareholders.

Japanese companies are subject to the Companies Act. The significant areas in the Companies Act that affect financial and accounting matters are summarized below:

(a) Dividends
Under the Companies Act, companies can pay dividends at any time during the fiscal year in addition to the year-end dividend upon resolution at the shareholders’ meeting. For 

companies that meet certain criteria such as; (1) having the Board of Directors, (2) having independent auditors, (3) having the Board of Corporate Auditors, and (4) the term of 

service of the directors is prescribed as one year rather than two years of normal term by its articles of incorporation, the Board of Directors may declare dividends at any time 

during the fiscal year (except for dividends-in-kind) if the company has prescribed so in its articles of incorporation.

The Company does not meet all the above criteria.

The Companies Act permits companies to distribute dividends-in-kind (non-cash assets) to shareholders subject to a certain limitation and additional requirements.

Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid once a year upon resolution by the Board of Directors if the articles of incorporation of the company stipulate so.

The Companies Act also provides certain limitations on the amounts available for dividends and the purchase of treasury stock. The limitation is defined as the amount 

available for distribution to the shareholders, but the amount of net assets after dividends must be maintained at no less than ¥3 million.

(b) Increases or decreases and transfer of capital stock, reserve and surplus
The Companies Act requires that an amount equal to 10% of dividends must be appropriated as a legal reserve (a component of retained earnings) or as additional paid-in capital (a 

component of capital surplus) depending on the equity account charged upon the payment of such dividends until the total of aggregate amount of legal reserve and additional 

paid-in capital equals 25% of the capital stock. Under the Companies Act, the total amount of additional paid-in capital and legal reserve may be reversed without limitation of 

such threshold.

The Companies Act also provides that capital stock, legal reserve, additional paid-in capital, other capital surplus and retained earnings can be transferred among the 

accounts under certain conditions upon resolution at the shareholders’ meeting.

(c) Treasury stock and treasury stock acquisition rights
The Companies Act also provides for companies to purchase treasury stock and dispose of such treasury stock by resolution of the Board of Directors. The amount of treasury 

stock purchased cannot exceed the amount available for distribution to the shareholders, which is determined by a specific formula. Under the Companies Act, stock acquisition 

rights, which were previously presented as a liability, are now presented as a separate component of net assets.

The Companies Act also provides that companies can purchase both treasury stock acquisition rights and treasury stock. Such treasury stock acquisition rights are presented 

as a separate component of net assets or deducted directly from stock acquisition rights.

The appropriation of retained earnings reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of changes in net assets represents the results of an appropriation made in 

the fiscal year in which it was approved by the shareholders’ meeting and disposed of during the fiscal year, rather than those in the years to which they relate.

(2) Subscription rights to shares for the year ended March 31, 2017 were as follows:

Number of shares issued Balance at March 31, 2017

Company Description

Type of shares 

issued

At April 1,

2016 Increase Decrease

At March 31,

2017 Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

Parent company

Subscription rights 

to shares as stock 

options

Common

stock
— — — — ¥96 $855

(3) Dividends for the year ended March 31, 2017 were as follows:

(a) Dividends paid
There are no relevant matters.

(b) Dividends with the cut-off date in the year ended March 31, 2017 and the effective date in the year ending March 31, 2018

Total dividends Dividends per share

Resolution Type of shares Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

Source of 

dividends Yen U.S. dollars Cut-off date Effective date

Annual general 

meeting of 

shareholders on 

June 27, 2017

Common stock 3,436 30,623
Retained 

earnings
2.00 0.01 March 31, 2017 June 28, 2017

1st series class I 

preferred stock
1,589 14,162

Retained 

earnings
11.35 0.10 March 31, 2017 June 28, 2017
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14. Stock Options

The Company has adopted a stock option plan under which subscription rights to shares are granted to directors and executive officers of the Company. 

The stock options outstanding as of March 31, 2017 were as follows:

Stock option: 1st Subscription Rights to Shares

Grantees: 11 directors

21 executive officers

Number of options granted*: Common stock, 476,500 shares

Grant date: August 26, 2010

Vesting conditions: (i)  Those who receive allotment of these subscription rights to shares (the “Grantees”) may exercise the rights during the exercisable period 

and 10 days starting the day following the date on which they lose their positions of both directors and executive officers of the Company.

(ii)  When the Grantees exercise these subscription rights to shares, they shall collectively exercise all subscription rights to shares held by 

themselves.

(iii)  Other conditions for the exercise of these subscription rights to shares are as prescribed in the “Share Subscription Right Allotment 

Agreement” entered into by and between the Company and each subscription rights holder in accordance with a resolution of the Board of 

Directors.

Vesting period: From June 25, 2010 to June 29, 2011

Exercise period: From August 27, 2010 to August 26, 2030

Stock option: 2nd Subscription Rights to Shares

Grantees: 10 directors

21 executive officers

Number of options granted*: Common stock, 335,000 shares

Grant date: August 25, 2011

Vesting conditions: (i)  Those who receive allotment of these subscription rights to shares (the “Grantees”) may exercise the rights during the exercisable period 

and 10 days starting the day following the date on which they lose their positions of both directors and executive officers of the Company.

(ii)  When the Grantees exercise these subscription rights to shares, they shall collectively exercise all subscription rights to shares held by 

themselves.

(iii)  Other conditions for the exercise of these subscription rights to shares are as prescribed in the “Share Subscription Right Allotment 

Agreement” entered into by and between the Company and each subscription rights holder in accordance with a resolution of the Board of 

Directors.

Vesting period: From June 29, 2011 to June 27, 2012

Exercise period: From August 26, 2011 to August 25, 2031

Stock option: 3rd Subscription Rights to Shares

Grantees: 10 directors

20 executive officers

Number of options granted*: Common stock, 223,500 shares

Grant date: August 23, 2012

Vesting conditions: (i)  Those who receive allotment of these subscription rights to shares (the “Grantees”) may exercise the rights during the exercisable period 

and 10 days starting the day following the date on which they lose their positions of both directors and executive officers of the Company.

(ii)  When the Grantees exercise these subscription rights to shares, they shall collectively exercise all subscription rights to shares held by 

themselves.

Vesting period: From June 27, 2012 to June 27, 2013

Exercise period: From August 24, 2012 to August 23, 2032

Stock option: 4th Subscription Rights to Shares

Grantees: 10 directors

20 executive officers

Number of options granted*: Common stock, 91,500 shares

Grant date: August 22, 2013

Vesting conditions: (i)  Those who receive allotment of these subscription rights to shares (the “Grantees”) may exercise the rights during the exercisable period 

and 10 days starting the day following the date on which they lose their positions of both directors and executive officers of the Company.

(ii)  When the Grantees exercise these subscription rights to shares, they shall collectively exercise all subscription rights to shares held by 

themselves.

Vesting period: From June 27, 2013 to June 26, 2014

Exercise period: From August 23, 2013 to August 22, 2033
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Stock option: 5th Subscription Rights to Shares

Grantees: 10 directors

19 executive officers

Number of options granted*: Common stock, 89,000 shares

Grant date: August 21, 2014

Vesting conditions: (i)  Those who receive allotment of these subscription rights to shares (the “Grantees”) may exercise the rights during the exercisable period 

and 10 days starting the day following the date on which they lose their positions of both directors and executive officers of the Company.

(ii)  When the Grantees exercise these subscription rights to shares, they shall collectively exercise all subscription rights to shares held by 

themselves.

Vesting period: From June 26, 2014 to June 25, 2015

Exercise period: From August 22, 2014 to August 21, 2034

Stock option: 6th Subscription Rights to Shares

Grantees: 10 directors

20 executive officers

Number of options granted*: Common stock, 116,000 shares

Grant date: August 20, 2015

Vesting conditions: (i)  Those who receive allotment of these subscription rights to shares (the “Grantees”) may exercise the rights during the exercisable period 

and 10 days starting the day following the date on which they lose their positions of both directors and executive officers of the Company.

(ii)  When the Grantees exercise these subscription rights to shares, they shall collectively exercise all subscription rights to shares held by 

themselves.

Vesting period: From June 25, 2015 to June 28, 2016

Exercise period: From August 21, 2015 to August 20, 2035

Stock option: 7th Subscription Rights to Shares

Grantees: 10 directors

20 executive officers

Number of options granted*: Common stock, 116,000 shares

Grant date: August 23, 2016

Vesting conditions: (i)  Those who receive allotment of these subscription rights to shares (the “Grantees”) may exercise the rights during the exercisable period 

and 10 days starting the day following the date on which they lose their positions of both directors and executive officers of the Company.

(ii)  When the Grantees exercise these subscription rights to shares, they shall collectively exercise all subscription rights to shares held by 

themselves.

Vesting period: From June 28, 2016 to June 27, 2017

Exercise period: From August 24, 2016 to August 23, 2036

*The number of stock options is shown in the number of shares.

The movement in stock options for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 was as follows. The number of stock options is shown in the number of shares.

Year ended March 31, 2016

1st Subscription

Rights to Shares

2nd Subscription

Rights to Shares

3rd Subscription 

Rights to Shares

4th Subscription 

Rights to Shares

5th Subscription 

Rights to Shares

6th Subscription 

Rights to Shares

Non-vested: (Number of shares) (Number of shares) (Number of shares) (Number of shares) (Number of shares) (Number of shares)

Outstanding as of March 31, 2015 214,000 191,500 160,000 74,000 85,000 —

Granted — — — — — 116,000

Forfeited — — — — — —

Vested 9,500 7,000 5,000 4,000 4,000 7,000

Outstanding as of March 31, 2016 204,500 184,500 155,000 70,000 81,000 109,000

Vested:

Outstanding as of March 31, 2015 — 7,000 5,000 2,000 4,000 —

Vested 9,500 7,000 5,000 4,000 4,000 7,000

Exercised 9,500 14,000 10,000 4,000 6,000 —

Forfeited — — — — — —

Outstanding as of March 31, 2016 — — — 2,000 2,000 7,000
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Year ended March 31, 2017

1st Subscription 

Rights to Shares

2nd Subscription

Rights to Shares

3rd Subscription 

Rights to Shares

4th Subscription 

Rights to Shares

5th Subscription 

Rights to Shares

6th Subscription 

Rights to Shares

7th Subscription 

Rights to Shares

Non-vested: (Number of shares) (Number of shares) (Number of shares) (Number of shares) (Number of shares) (Number of shares) (Number of shares)

Outstanding as of March 31, 2016 204,500 184,500 155,000 70,000 81,000 109,000 —

Granted — — — — — — 116,000

Forfeited — — — — — — —

Vested 76,500 58,000 41,500 17,000 17,000 21,000 2,500

Outstanding as of March 31, 2017 128,000 126,500 113,500 53,000 64,000 88,000 113,500

Vested:

Outstanding as of March 31, 2016 — — — 2,000 2,000 7,000 —

Vested 76,500 58,000 41,500 17,000 17,000 21,000 2,500

Exercised 67,500 51,000 36,500 17,000 17,000 25,500 —

Forfeited — — — — — — —

Outstanding as of March 31, 2017 9,000 7,000 5,000 2,000 2,000 2,500 2,500

Exercise price
¥1 per share

($0.00 per share)

¥1 per share

($0.00 per share)

¥1 per share

($0.00 per share)

¥1 per share

($0.00 per share)

¥1 per share

($0.00 per share)

¥1 per share

($0.00 per share)

¥1 per share

($0.00 per share)

Average stock price upon exercise
¥186.00

($1.65)

¥186.00

($1.65)

¥186.00

($1.65)

¥188.58

($1.68)

¥188.58

($1.68)

¥193.62

($1.72)
—

Fair value per share at the grant date
¥57.00 per share

($0.50 per share)

¥75.00 per share

($0.66 per share)

¥105.00 per share

($0.93 per share)

¥251.00 per share

($2.23 per share)

¥246.00 per share

($2.19 per share)

¥206.00 per share

($1.83 per share)

¥200.00 per share

($1.78 per share)

The assumption used to estimate the fair value per share of the 7th Subscription Rights to Shares was as follows:

Estimation method: Black-Scholes option pricing model

Volatility of the share price: *1 38.355%

Expected remaining period: *2 1.78 years

Expected dividend: *3 ¥0 per share

Risk-free rate: *4 (0.205)%

*1. The Company used the historical volatility calculated based on historical data of the Company’s share prices for past 93 weeks which was equivalent to the expected 

remaining period (1.78 years) from the grant date of August 23, 2016.

*2. Expected remaining period was calculated by adding the period up to 10 days after exercise date of this subscription right to shares to the average tenure of the directors and 

executive officers of the Company.

*3. The Company assumed no dividend to be declared.

*4. The yield of Japanese government bonds corresponding to the relevant expected remaining period was used.

Since it is extremely difficult to estimate the number of future forfeitures, the Company adopts a method where the actual number of forfeitures is used.

15. Financial Instruments

Overviews
(1) Policy for financial instruments
The Companies’ main operation is “consumer finance service,” and the Companies also engage in the credit collection and credit-related businesses. The Companies raise funds 

by direct finance such as loans, corporate bonds, commercial papers and securitization of receivables. Also, the Companies enter into interest rate option transactions such as 

interest rate cap transactions and interest rate swap transactions to cut down and equalize finance cost.

(2) Types of financial instruments and related risk
Financial assets held by the Companies are mainly operating receivables from individuals and are exposed to credit risk. Due to changes such as customers’ income 

environment, there is a possibility of failure to perform their contractual obligations. Investment securities mainly consist of equity securities. The Companies own the above 

securities for business promotion purpose. They are exposed to credit risk of the issuers, interest rate fluctuation risk, and market fluctuation risk. Assets and liabilities 

denominated in foreign currencies are exposed to foreign currency risk.

Loans, unsecured corporate bonds and commercial papers are exposed to liquidity risk which is the risk of insufficient financing because the Companies cannot access to 

market under certain environment. The Companies have floating interest rate loans which are exposed to interest rate fluctuation risk; however, the Companies utilize derivative 

transactions such as interest rate swap transactions and interest rate cap transactions to hedge the above risk.

In the interest rate swap transactions, the Company adopts deferral hedge accounting to reduce interest rate fluctuation risk in loans as hedged items. The Company 

evaluates the effectiveness of their hedging activities by seeking the correlation of the benchmark interest rate fluctuation ranges between the hedging instruments and the 

related hedged items. No interest rate cap transactions are currently executed. There is no derivative transaction for speculative purpose.

(3) Risk management of financial instruments

(a) Credit risk management
The Company has established the “risk management group” as a separate and independent body from sales promotion function to manage credit risk. “Credit division” in the “risk 

management group” manages the individual customers’ credit condition and credit standing.

The credit condition and credit standing are periodically reported to the “credit committee,” in which the measures for appropriate credit are discussed and determined.

For operating receivables, the Company has established a system to perform credit inspection individually based on the “work authorization rules” and “credit procedures.”

For delinquent receivables, the Company has established the “administration group” as a specialized group in relation to collection of receivables and manages receivables 

in the early stage to mitigate the risk. In addition, the Company corresponds to the effect of the risk exposure by recognizing appropriate allowance based on the “allowance for 

credit losses and write-offs rules, bylaws and related operating principles.”
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The Company has established a system in which the status of these credit risk management is discussed in the “overall risk management committee” that is held once every 

three months and the contents are reviewed at the management meeting and Board of Directors’ meeting.

(b) Market risk management

(i) Interest rate risk management
The Company has established the “ALM division” in the “finance department,” as a special division of ALM. Based on the ALM operation principles determined by the management 

meeting, the “ALM committee” that is held monthly in principle controls interest rate risk through gap position and maturity ladder approach.

The Company has established a system in which the status of these interest rate risk management is discussed in the “overall risk management committee” that is held once 

every three months and the contents are reviewed at the management meeting and Board of Directors’ meeting.

Also, interest rate swap transactions are utilized to hedge interest rate fluctuation risk.

(ii) Foreign currency risk management
The Companies manage foreign currency risk on an individual transaction basis.

(iii) Price fl uctuation risk management
Most of the investment securities the Companies own are for business promotion purpose, and the Companies manage the risk by monitoring counterparties’ market 

environment and financial condition periodically.

(iv) Derivative transactions
The Company has established internal rules for derivative transactions which were determined by the Board of Directors and defined the related policies, standards of 

treatment, management method and reporting structure.

Execution of derivative transactions requires the approval from the Board of Directors, and the execution and management are operated under mutual supervision system.

(v) Quantitative information in connection with market risk
The Company quantitatively analyzes, for all financial instruments, the impact on profit and loss for the immediate five years using a reasonably anticipated range of interest 

rate fluctuations to manage interest rate fluctuation risk. The impact is calculated by classifying applicable financial instruments into a fixed-rate group and a floating-rate group 

and breaking down the balances by the appropriate durations based on respective rollover dates.

The major financial instruments exposed to interest rate risk, which is the primary risk factor for the Companies, are short-term bank loans, long-term debt, commercial 

papers, securitized receivables, unsecured corporate bonds and interest rate swaps.

Assuming risk factors other than interest rates stay constant, as of March 31, 2017, the Companies estimate that profit before income taxes would decrease by ¥672 million 

($5,989 thousand) for the year ending March 31, 2018 (decrease by ¥606 million for the year ending March 31, 2017 as of March 31, 2016) if the benchmark interest rate rose by 

10 basis points (0.1%), and that profit before income taxes would increase by ¥672 million ($5,989 thousand) for the year ending March 31, 2018 (increase by ¥606 million for 

the year ending March 31, 2017 as of March 31, 2016) if the benchmark interest rate fell by 10 basis points (0.1%). This impact was calculated based on the assumption that risk 

factors other than interest rates stay constant, and a correlation between interest rates and other risk factors was not taken into account.

In addition, if any interest rate fluctuation exceeds the reasonably anticipated range, the impact may exceed the calculated amounts.

(c) Liquidity risk management in connection with financing
The Company has established the “ALM division” in the “finance department,” as a special division of ALM. The “ALM committee” that is held monthly in principle performs 

liquidity risk management by such means as diversification of the financing method, acquisition of commitment lines from multiple financial institutions, and adjustment 

between current and long-term balances considering the market environment.

The Company has established a system in which the status of these liquidity risk management is discussed in the “overall risk management committee,” which is held once 

every three months, and the contents are reviewed at the management meeting and Board of Directors’ meeting.

(4) Supplemental explanation on fair value of financial instruments
The fair values of financial instruments include values which are reasonably calculated in case market prices do not exist as well as the values based on market prices. As the 

calculation of those values includes certain assumptions, those values may vary when different assumptions are applied. Also, for the contract amount regarding derivative 

transactions in “(a) Fair value of financial instruments,” the contract amount itself does not indicate market risk related to derivative transactions.

Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments
(a) Fair value of financial instruments
Carrying amount on the consolidated balance sheet, fair value and their difference of financial instruments at March 31, 2017 and 2016 were as follows. The financial 

instruments whose fair value is extremely difficult to determine are excluded from the table below. (Please refer to (b) below.)

Millions of yen

2017

Carrying amount on 

the consolidated 

balance sheet *1 Fair value *1 Difference

(i) Cash and bank deposits ¥   198,498 ¥   198,498 ¥         —

(ii) Operating receivables *2 1,325,870 1,353,056 27,185

(iii) Investment securities 

Available-for-sale securities 5,458 5,458 —

(iv) Notes and accounts payable (114,585) (114,585) —

(v) Short-term bank loans (47,736) (47,736) —

(vi) Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 

Commercial papers (176,400) (176,400) —

(vii) Unsecured corporate bonds (150,000) (149,742) 257

(viii) Long-term debt (including current portion of long-term debt) (874,086) (875,044) (957)

(ix) Derivative transactions *3 

Hedge accounting is applied (272) (272) —
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Millions of yen

2016

Carrying amount on 

the consolidated 

balance sheet *1 Fair value *1 Difference

(i) Cash and bank deposits ¥   178,792 ¥   178,792 ¥         —

(ii) Operating receivables *2 1,167,946 1,204,693 36,747

(iii) Investment securities 

Available-for-sale securities 2,333 2,333 —

(iv) Notes and accounts payable (115,658) (115,658) —

(v) Short-term bank loans (42,130) (42,130) —

(vi) Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 

Commercial papers (186,200) (186,200) —

(vii) Unsecured corporate bonds (80,015) (80,591) (576)

(viii) Long-term debt (including current portion of long-term debt) (788,620) (790,683) (2,063)

(ix) Derivative transactions *3 

Hedge accounting is applied (410) (410) —

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2017

Carrying amount on 

the consolidated 

balance sheet *1 Fair value *1 Difference

(i) Cash and bank deposits $  1,769,144 $  1,769,144 $            —

(ii) Operating receivables *2 11,817,023 12,059,322 242,290

(iii) Investment securities 

Available-for-sale securities 48,645 48,645 —

(iv) Notes and accounts payable (1,021,256) (1,021,256) —

(v) Short-term bank loans (425,454) (425,454) —

(vi) Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 

Commercial papers (1,572,192) (1,572,192) —

(vii) Unsecured corporate bonds (1,336,898) (1,334,598) 2,290

(viii) Long-term debt (including current portion of long-term debt) (7,790,427) (7,798,966) (8,529)

(ix) Derivative transactions *3 

Hedge accounting is applied (2,424) (2,424) —

*1. The liability position is shown as negative.

*2. Operating receivables include direct installment receivables and beneficiary certificates retained for receivable securitization, and allowance for credit losses is deducted 

from the amount. Carrying amount on the consolidated balance sheet of the direct installment receivables includes the amount equivalent to unearned finance income. Fair 

values of debt guarantees (Guaranteed loan receivables) as of March 31, 2017 and 2016 were ¥29,120 million ($259,536 thousand) and ¥26,016 million, respectively.

*3. Net receivables and payables arising from derivative transactions are presented on a net basis, and the payables position is shown as negative.

Valuation method for fair value of financial instruments and information on investment securities and derivative transactions are as follows:

(i) Cash and bank deposits
For bank deposits without maturities, fair value is based on carrying value since the fair value approximates the carrying value. For deposits with maturities, as they are short-

term within one year, fair value is based on carrying value since the fair value approximates the carrying value.

(ii) Operating receivables
For direct installment receivables, fair value is measured by discounting the estimated future cash flows of the principal and interest, which includes beneficiary certificates 

retained for receivable securitization, using the market interest rate. Fair value of direct installment receivables of overseas bases is supposed to approximate the carrying 

value, net of applicable allowance for credit losses, because of its expected repayment periods, interest rate terms and other reasons, so the fair value is based on such amount. 

For delinquent receivables, fair value is based on carrying value, net of applicable allowance for credit losses, since the uncollectible amount is estimated considering the 

collectability and accordingly the fair value approximates such amount.

(iii) Investment securities
For fair value of investment securities, stocks are based on the price on stock exchanges. Fair value of investment trusts is based on the public daily net asset value per unit.

(iv) Notes and accounts payable
Fair value is based on carrying value since the fair value approximates the carrying value when it is scheduled to be settled in a short period of time. Those related to collection 

guarantees are excluded.

(v) Short-term bank loans and (vi) Commercial papers
Fair value is based on carrying value since the fair value approximates the carrying value considering it is scheduled to be settled in a short period of time.

(vii) Unsecured corporate bonds
Fair value of bonds is based on the market price, and fair value of bonds in the year ended March 31, 2016, which were issued by certain of the Company’s consolidated 

subsidiaries, is measured as the net present value by discounting the total amount of principal and interest using the interest rate applied to the issuance of the same kind of 

bond.
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(viii) Long-term debt and current portion of long-term debt
For floating rate long-term debt, fair value is based on carrying value since the carrying value is assumed to approximate the fair value because the interest rate reflects the 

market interest and the Companies’ credit condition in a short period of time. For fixed rate long-term debt, fair value is measured as the net present value by discounting the 

total amount of principal and interest by category of the term (for those loans which meet certain criteria to adopt the exceptional treatment of interest rate swap transactions, 

fair value is determined as the total amount of principal and interest using the interest rate of interest rate swap transactions) using the interest rate applied to the same kind of 

loan.

(ix) Derivative transactions
Information of fair value for derivative transactions is described in Note 16. Derivative Transactions.

(x) Debt guarantees
Fair value is measured by discounting the estimated future cash flows of guarantee fees under contracts, net of applicable credit risk, etc., using the market interest rate.

(b) Financial instruments whose fair value is deemed to be extremely difficult to determine at March 31, 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2017 2016 2017

Unlisted equity securities ¥6,099 ¥6,277 $54,358

The above securities are not included in (iii) Investment securities in the table above, as there are no market prices available, their future cash flows cannot be estimated and it 

is deemed to be extremely difficult to determine the fair value.

(5) The redemption schedule for financial receivables and securities with maturities subsequent to March 31, 2017 was as follows:

Millions of yen

Due within 

one year

Due after one

 year through 

two years

Due after two 

years through 

three years

Due after three 

years through 

four years

Due after four 

years through 

five years

Due after 

five years

Bank deposits ¥198,315 ¥          — ¥          — ¥         — ¥         — ¥          —

Operating receivables 545,763 164,513 107,850 80,191 66,837 287,438

Total ¥744,079 ¥164,513 ¥107,850 ¥80,191 ¥66,837 ¥287,438

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Due within 

one year

Due after one

 year through 

two years

Due after two 

years through 

three years

Due after three 

years through 

four years

Due after four 

years through 

five years

Due after 

five years

Bank deposits $1,767,513 $               — $          — $          — $          — $               —

Operating receivables 4,864,197 1,466,247 961,229 714,714 595,695 2,561,836

Total $6,631,720 $1,466,247 $961,229 $714,714 $595,695 $2,561,836

(6) The repayment schedules for long-term debt, unsecured corporate bonds and other interest-bearing debt are disclosed in Note 9. Short-

Term Bank Loans, Long-Term Debt, Lease Obligations and Others.

16. Derivative Transactions

Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting was applied at March 31, 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

Interest-rate related:

Millions of yen

2017

Contract amount, etc.

Hedge accounting method and transaction type

Hedged

item Total Over one year Fair value *1

Principle method

Interest rate swap transactions

(Payable fixed/ Receivable floating)
Loans and debt ¥19,000 ¥19,000 ¥(272)

Exceptional treatment

Interest rate swap transactions

(Payable fixed/ Receivable floating)
Loans and debt 62,835 56,235 *2

¥81,835 ¥75,235 ¥    —
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Millions of yen

2016

Contract amount, etc.

Hedge accounting method and transaction type

Hedged

item Total Over one year Fair value*1

Principle method

Interest rate swap transactions

(Payable fixed/ Receivable floating)
Loans and debt ¥  19,000 ¥19,000 ¥(410)

Exceptional treatment

Interest rate swap transactions

(Payable fixed/ Receivable floating)
Loans and debt 114,482 73,063 *2

¥133,482 ¥92,063 ¥    —

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2017

Contract amount, etc.

Hedge accounting method and transaction type

Hedged

item Total Over one year Fair value *1

Principle method

Interest rate swap transactions

(Payable fixed/ Receivable floating)
Loans and debt $169,340 $169,340 $(2,424)

Exceptional treatment

Interest rate swap transactions

(Payable fixed/ Receivable floating)
Loans and debt 560,026 501,203 *2

$729,367 $670,543 $       —

*1 Fair value is determined at the quoted price obtained from the counterparty financial institutions.

*2 As interest rate swap transactions to which the exceptional treatment is applied are accounted for with loans as hedged items, fair value of the interest rate swap 

transactions is included in the fair value of such loans.

17. Breakdown of Consumer Finance Service Revenue

Consumer finance service revenue for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2017 2016 2017

Consumer credit ¥  61,626 ¥  54,804 $   549,251

Credit card shopping 45,210 42,427 402,941

Direct cash loans 28,927 31,221 257,816

Guarantee and loan agent services 61,125 66,097 544,786

Other 1,846 1,767 16,452

¥198,736 ¥196,317 $1,771,265

The amounts of revenue on securitization of direct installment receivables included in consumer finance service revenue were as follows:

Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2017 2016 2017

Consumer credit ¥42,134 ¥35,937 $375,525

Credit card shopping 16,695 14,197 148,796

Direct cash loans 14,900 14,784 132,798

¥73,730 ¥64,919 $657,130
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18. Breakdown of Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2017 2016 2017

Provision of allowance for point program ¥     4,361 ¥     3,594 $      38,868

Provision of allowance for credit losses 35,315 36,680 314,750

Provision of allowance for losses on interest refunds 17,172 18,449 153,048

Employees’ salaries 30,280 30,433 269,875

Retirement benefit expenses 1,028 1,546 9,162

Provision of accrued bonuses 3,817 3,286 34,019

Outsourcing fee 18,385 19,351 163,859

Other 60,604 57,695 540,142

¥170,966 ¥171,037 $1,523,761

19. Cash Flow Information

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents on the consolidated statements of cash flows and cash and bank deposits on the consolidated balance sheet was as follows:

Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2017 2016 2017

Cash and bank deposits ¥198,498 ¥178,792 $1,769,144

Cash and cash equivalents ¥198,498 ¥178,792 $1,769,144

20. Comprehensive Income

Reclassification adjustments and income tax effects on components of other comprehensive income for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2017 2016 2017

Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities:

Gains (losses) arising during the year ¥2,506 ¥(160) $22,335

Reclassification adjustments 0 (2) 0

Amount before income tax effect 2,506 (162) 22,335

Income tax effect (766) 67 (6,827)

Total 1,740 (95) 15,508

Deferred gains (losses) on hedges:

Gains (losses) arising during the year 58 (305) 516

Reclassification adjustments 79 30 704

Amount before income tax effect 137 (275) 1,221

Income tax effect — — —

Total 137 (275) 1,221

Foreign currency translation adjustments:

Gains (losses) arising during the year 6 (63) 53

Reclassification adjustments — — —

Amount before income tax effect 6 (63) 53

Income tax effect — — —

Total 6 (63) 53

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans, net of tax:

(Losses) gains arising during the year (99) 291 (882)

Reclassification adjustments (617) (411) (5,499)

Amount before income tax effect (716) (119) (6,381)

Income tax effect 1 0 8

Total (714) (119) (6,363)

Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for using equity method:

Gains (losses) arising during the year 1 (0) 8

Reclassification adjustments — — —

Total 1 (0) 8

Total other comprehensive income ¥1,171 ¥(553) $10,436
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21. Related Party Transactions

For the year ended March 31, 2017
(1) Transactions with a major shareholder of the Company were as follows:

Name

Voting rights

(%)

Business 

relationship Details of transaction

Transaction amount

Account

Balance

Millions of yen

Thousands of

U.S. dollars Millions of yen

Thousands of

U.S. dollars

Mizuho Bank, Ltd. Direct

48.68

Borrowing of 

funds

Borrowing of funds, net ¥  20,000 $   178,253 Current portion of 

long-term debt

¥  29,000 $   258,467

Long-term debt 101,000 900,178

Interest payments 1,019 9,081 Accrued expenses 11 98

Loan business 

alliance

Loan guarantee Debt guarantee 81,498 726,363 Guaranteed loan 

payables

608,949 5,427,352

Receipt of 

guarantee fee

8,761 78,083 — — —

Bank guarantee Debt guarantee 292,638 2,608,181 Guaranteed loan 

payables

545,778 4,864,331

Receipt of 

guarantee fee

15,920 141,889 Other current assets 1,433 12,771

Notes 1. Interest and guarantee fee rates were determined based on the terms and conditions generally applied to other third-party transactions.

 2. Mizuho Bank, Ltd. also falls under subsidiaries of other affiliated company.

(2) Transactions with a subsidiary of the Company’s other affiliated company were as follows:

Name

Voting rights

(%)

Business 

relationship Details of transaction

Transaction amount

Account

Balance

Millions of yen

Thousands of

U.S. dollars Millions of yen

Thousands of

U.S. dollars

Mizuho Trust & 

Banking Co., Ltd.

Direct

0.06

Loan business 

alliance

Loan guarantee Debt guarantee ¥20,601 $183,609 Guaranteed loan 

payables

¥147,787 $1,317,174

Receipt of 

guarantee fee

2,936 26,167 — — —

Note Interest and guarantee fee rates were determined based on the terms and conditions generally applied to other third-party transactions.

For the year ended March 31, 2016
(1) Transactions with a major shareholder of the Company were as follows:

Name

Voting rights

(%)

Business 

relationship Details of transaction

Transaction amount

Account

Balance

Millions of yen Millions of yen

Mizuho Bank, Ltd. Direct

48.69

Borrowing of 

funds

Borrowing of funds, net ¥           — Current portion of 

long-term debt

¥  51,900

Long-term debt 58,100

Interest payments 1,233 Accrued expenses 22

Loan business 

alliance

Loan guarantee Debt guarantee 238,976 Guaranteed loan 

payables

800,182

Receipt of 

guarantee fee

23,570 — —

Bank guarantee Debt guarantee 285,708 Guaranteed loan 

payables

519,434

Receipt of 

guarantee fee

13,375 Other current 

assets

1,210

Notes 1. Interest and guarantee fee rates were determined based on the terms and conditions generally applied to other third-party transactions.

 2. Mizuho Bank, Ltd. also falls under subsidiaries of other affiliated company.

(2) Transactions with a subsidiary of the Company’s other affiliated company were as follows:

Name

Voting rights

(%)

Business 

relationship Details of transaction

Transaction amount

Account

Balance

Millions of yen Millions of yen

Mizuho Trust & 

Banking Co., Ltd.

Direct

0.06

Loan business 

alliance

Loan guarantee Debt guarantee ¥68,967 Guaranteed loan 

payables

¥206,057

Receipt of 

guarantee fee

8,918 — —

Note Interest and guarantee fee rates were determined based on the terms and conditions generally applied to other third-party transactions.

22. Special Purpose Companies Subject to Disclosure

The Company securitizes credit receivables and other receivables in order to diversify sources of funding and secure stable financing. For a certain part of such securitization, 

the Company uses limited liability companies as special purpose companies.

The Company entrusts the receivables described above to a trust bank, and certain senior portions of the trust beneficiary rights are transferred to the special purpose 

companies. The special purpose companies raise funds through issuing bonds and other securities backed by asset-based lending based on the senior trust beneficiary rights 

transferred by the Company, and the Company receives the funds as proceeds from the sale of the senior trust beneficiary rights for financing. Moreover, loans have been 

executed in certain securitization matters.

The Company did not hold stock and other securities with voting rights of the special purpose companies and did not dispatch any officers or employees to these companies.

Orient Corporation38



2017 2016 2017

Number of special purpose companies 6 4 —

Total assets as of the latest fiscal year-end (simple total) ¥64,952 million ¥57,693 million $578,894 thousand

Total liabilities as of the latest fiscal year-end (simple total) ¥64,748 million ¥57,564 million $577,076 thousand

Note The number of companies whose accounts for the first business year were not settled was two for the year ended March 31, 2017 (two for the year ended March 31, 2016), 

and their accounts were not added to the total assets and total liabilities.

 Initial net assets of the companies whose accounts for the first business year were not settled (simple total) were ¥105 million ($935 thousand) for the year ended March 

31, 2017 (¥105 million for the year ended March 31, 2016).

Amounts of transactions with the special purpose companies for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

Millions of yen Millions of yen

2017

Amount or balance at 

March 31, 2017 of main 

transactions

Gains or losses

Item Amount

Transferred assets

Senior trust beneficiary rights * ¥73,200 — ¥—

Loans receivable 2,400 Interest income 4

Millions of yen Millions of yen

2016

Amount or balance at 

March 31, 2016 of main 

transactions

Gains or losses

Item Amount

Transferred assets

Senior trust beneficiary rights * ¥32,100 — ¥—

Thousands of

U.S. dollars

Thousands of

U.S. dollars

2017

Amount or balance at 

March 31, 2017 of main 

transactions

Gains or losses

Item Amount

Transferred assets

Senior trust beneficiary rights * $652,406 — $—

Loans receivable 21,390 Interest income 35

*Amounts of transfer value are stated.

23. Earnings per Share

The bases for calculation are as follows:

Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2017 2016 2017

Basic earnings per share:

Profit attributable to owners of parent ¥     28,690 ¥     24,577 $255,704

Profit not attributable to common stock shareholders: 2,161 — 19,260

Preferred dividends 1,589 — 14,162

Amount for which shareholders excluding common stock shareholders can participate 

in dividends after dividends for the period are paid from profit in consolidated 

statements of income

572 — 5,098

Profit attributable to owners of parent related to common stock 26,528 24,577 236,434

Weighted average number of shares for common stock (thousands of shares) 1,718,092 1,407,885

Diluted earnings per share:

Profit adjustment attributable to owners of parent — — —

Increase in shares of common stock (thousands of shares): 713 310,806  

1st series class J preferred stock — 310,039  

Subscription rights to shares 713 766  
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24. Segment Information

(1) Overview of the reportable segments
The reportable segments of the Company are components for which separate financial information is available and whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Board 

of Directors to assess their business performance and make decisions about resources allocation.

The Company consists of the following four reportable segments which are core businesses of the Company:

• “Installment credit” – consumer credit service and credit guarantee service focusing on auto loans and shopping credit;

• “Credit cards and direct cash loans” – consumer credit cards, credit card shopping service focusing on individual customers, and consumer loans service;

• “Bank loan guarantee” – guarantee service for personal loans provided by affiliated financial institutions; and

• “Settlement and guarantee” – settlement and guarantee services for rents and accounts receivable, guarantee service for small leases, and collection agent service.

The Companies aim to develop the “settlement and guarantee” business into their fourth business in the medium-term management plan covering five years from the year 

ended March 31, 2016 and have changed their reportable segments from previous three reportable segments of “installment credit,” “credit cards and direct cash loans” and “bank 

loan guarantee” to four reportable segments of those plus “settlement and guarantee” from the year ended March 31, 2017. Specifically, the settlement and guarantee services 

for rents and accounts receivable and guarantee service for small leases have been transferred from the previous “installment credit,” and the collection agent service has been 

transferred from the “other,” to the “settlement and guarantee.”

Segment information for the year ended March 31, 2016 has been prepared based on the revised reportable segments.

(2) Calculation method for the amounts of operating revenues, income and assets for each reportable segment
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are consistent with those described in Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Inter-segment revenues or 

transfers are recorded based on the prices used in ordinary transactions with independent third parties.

(3) Information about operating revenues, income and assets by reportable segment

Millions of yen

2017

Reportable segments

Installment 

credit

Credit cards and 

direct cash loans

Bank loan 

guarantee

Settlement and 

guarantee Total Other *1 Total

Operating revenues

Operating revenues to external customers *2 ¥     76,458 ¥  73,897 ¥     39,333 ¥  6,810 ¥   196,501 ¥  11,042 ¥   207,543

Inter-segment revenues or transfers — 1 — 0 2 8,551 8,553

Total 76,458 73,899 39,333 6,811 196,503 19,593 216,096

Segment profit 61,827 61,890 24,102 6,087 153,907 4,922 158,830

Segment assets *3 2,908,433 590,324 1,349,651 65,422 4,913,833 180,768 5,094,601

Millions of yen

2016

Reportable segments

Installment 

credit

Credit cards and 

direct cash loans

Bank loan 

guarantee

Settlement and 

guarantee Total Other *1 Total

Operating revenues

Operating revenues to external customers *2 ¥     79,990 ¥  73,423 ¥     35,020 ¥  5,322 ¥   193,757 ¥  11,807 ¥   205,564

Inter-segment revenues or transfers — 2 — 0 3 8,365 8,368

Total 79,990 73,425 35,020 5,323 193,760 20,172 213,933

Segment profit 63,937 57,772 21,844 4,729 148,285 4,784 153,069

Segment assets *3 2,764,361 568,675 1,275,989 39,249 4,648,275 212,822 4,861,097

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2017

Reportable segments

Installment 

credit

Credit cards and 

direct cash loans

Bank loan 

guarantee

Settlement and 

guarantee Total Other *1 Total

Operating revenues

Operating revenues to external customers *2 $     681,443 $   658,618 $     350,561 $  60,695 $  1,751,345 $     98,413 $   1,849,759

Inter-segment revenues or transfers — 8 — 0 17 76,212 76,229

Total 681,443 658,636 350,561 60,704 1,751,363 174,625 1,925,989

Segment profit 551,042 551,604 214,812 54,251 1,371,720 43,868 1,415,597

Segment assets *3 25,921,862 5,261,354 12,028,975 583,083 43,795,303 1,611,122 45,406,426

*1. “Other” represents business segments that are not included in the reportable segments and include operations such as housing loans for which the Companies currently do 

not provide new loans and servicer business.
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*2. Operating revenues to external customers by each reportable segment consisted of the following:

Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2017 2016 2017

Installment credit:

Revenue from consumer credit ¥57,059 ¥50,590 $508,547

Revenue from credit guarantee 19,399 29,399 172,896

Credit cards and direct cash loans:

Revenue from credit card shopping 45,210 42,427 402,941

Revenue from direct cash loans 28,687 30,995 255,677

Bank loan guarantee:

Revenue from guarantee and loan agent services 39,333 35,020 350,561

Settlement and guarantee:

Revenue from consumer credit 4,567 4,053 40,704

Revenue from credit guarantee 1,404 416 12,513

Other 838 852 7,468

*3. Segment assets include the balance of securitized direct installment receivables.

(4) Reconciliations between total of operating revenues, segment profit and segment assets for the reportable segments and the amounts 

recorded on the consolidated financial statements

Millions of yen

Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2017 2016 2017

Operating revenues:

Total reportable segments ¥    196,503 ¥   193,760 $  1,751,363

Other business segments 19,593 20,172 174,625

Corporate revenues 6,150 6,239 54,812

Inter-segment eliminations (8,553) (8,368) (76,229)

Operating revenues on the consolidated financial statements ¥    213,693 ¥   211,804 $  1,904,572

Segment profit:

Total reportable segments ¥    153,907 ¥   148,285 $  1,371,720

Other business segments 4,922 4,784 43,868

Corporate expenses * (117,250) (115,751) (1,045,008)

Other (8,064) (7,831) (71,871)

Operating profit on the consolidated financial statements ¥      33,515 ¥      29,486 $      298,707

Segment assets:

Total reportable segments ¥4,913,833 ¥4,648,275 $43,795,303

Other business segments 180,768 212,822 1,611,122

Corporate assets 1,412,757 1,284,145 12,591,417

Securitized direct installment receivables (1,175,544) (989,442) (10,477,219)

Other (2,755) (2,901) (24,554)

Total assets on the consolidated financial statements ¥5,329,058 ¥5,152,900 $47,496,060

* Corporate expenses represent mainly selling, general and administrative expenses excluding provision of allowance for credit losses.
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(5) Related information

(a) Information by product and service has been omitted for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 since it is consistent with the reportable segment information.

(b)  Information by geographical area has been omitted for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 since operating revenues from external customers in Japan constituted 

more than 90% of operating revenues in the consolidated statements of income and the balance of property and equipment located in Japan constituted more than 90% of 

the balance in the consolidated balance sheet. 

(c)  Information by major customer has been omitted for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 since there was no specific external customer representing 10% or more of 

operating revenues in the consolidated statements of income.

(d) Information about impairment losses on fixed assets

 For the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, no impairment loss was recorded.

(e) Information about goodwill

  Goodwill was previously incurred from business combinations and was not allocated to the reportable segments since it was not allocable. For the years ended March 31, 

2017 and 2016, amortization of unallocated goodwill was ¥61 million ($543 thousand) and ¥61 million, respectively, and as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, the unamortized 

balance was ¥32 million ($285 thousand) and ¥94 million, respectively.

(f) Information about gain on negative goodwill

 For the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, no gain on negative goodwill was recorded.

25. Subsequent Events

On May 11, 2017, the Board of Directors’ meeting resolved that the Company would acquire portions of shares of 1st series class I preferred stock in accordance with Article 

12-2 of the Articles of Incorporation of the Company and cancel such shares on condition of the acquisition in accordance with Article 178 of the Companies Act, and the 

Company acquired them on May 31, 2017 and canceled them on June 27, 2017.

(1) Reasons for acquisition and cancellation
The Company’s basic policy on returning profits to shareholders is to maintain an appropriate level of shareholders’ equity and to pay stable and continuous dividends by 

strengthening its management base. Also, the redemption by purchase of preferred stock is one of the Company’s important management challenges.

The Company acquired (mandatory redemption) portions of shares of 1st series class I preferred stock held by Mizuho Bank, Ltd. and cancelled them in consideration of the 

profit plan for the year ending March 31, 2018 and other factors and in view of annual dividend ratio of the preferred stock scheduled to be increased in August 2017, interest 

rate risk in future and other factors, according to the above policy.

(2) Acquisition details
(a) Type of shares acquired: 1st series class I preferred stock

(b) Total number of shares acquired: 70,000,000 shares   Note 1

(c) Acquisition costs per share: ¥1,051.85 ($9.37)     Note 2

(d) Total acquisition costs of shares: ¥73,629,500,000 ($656,234,402.85)

(e) Date of notification to the counterparty: May 11, 2017

(f) Acquisition date: May 31, 2017

Notes 1. The number of initially issued shares was 140,000,000 shares, and the number of unacquired shares after the above acquisition is 70,000,000 shares.

 2.  The acquisition cost per share was calculated in accordance with Article 12-2 of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation. The amount paid in for shares of 1st series 

class I preferred stock at issuance was ¥1,000 ($8.91) per share.

(3) Cancellation details
(a) Type of shares cancelled: 1st series class I preferred stock

(b) Total number of shares cancelled: 70,000,000 shares

(c) Cancellation date: June 27, 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Chairman and Director Masayuki Saito

President and Representative Director Masaaki Kono

Representative Director Yukihiro Miyake

Representative Director Kosuke Maeda

Representative Director Hideki Matsuo

Director Kiyotaka Yabuta

Director Kyohei Ogawa

Director Yoshio Nakabayashi

Director Nobuo Setta

Director Chiharu Higuchi

Director Naoki Ohgo

Director Shizue Inuzuka

Director Yoshihisa Suzuki

Consumer Finance Service: CAL Credit Guarantee Co., Ltd. Orico Auto Leasing (Thailand) Ltd.

Other Services

 (Credit Collection Services, Outsourcing 

Business and Other):

Orico Business & Communications Co., Ltd. ORIFA Servicer Corporation

Ohtori Corporation and 12 other companies

Japan Collection Service CO., Ltd.

Audit & Supervisory Board Member Hiroshi Kiyama

Audit & Supervisory Board Member Koji Takata

Audit & Supervisory Board Member Toshihiko Nakamura

Audit & Supervisory Board Member Yuki Sakurai

Audit & Supervisory Board Member Gan Matsui

Directors Audit & Supervisory Board Members

Orico’s Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

Chairman Masayuki Saito

President Masaaki Kono

Senior Managing Executive Officer Yukihiro Miyake

Senior Managing Executive Officer Kosuke Maeda

Senior Managing Executive Officer Hideki Matsuo

Managing Executive Officer Kiyotaka Yabuta

Managing Executive Officer Kyohei Ogawa

Managing Executive Officer Yoshio Nakabayashi

Managing Executive Officer Nobuo Setta

Managing Executive Officer Yuji Fukasawa

Managing Executive Officer Tetsuro Mizuno

Managing Executive Officer Tomoaki Okuma

Managing Executive Officer Atsushi Sugao

Managing Executive Officer Satoshi Itagaki

Managing Executive Officer Tatsuhiro Matsuura

Executive Officer Chiharu Higuchi

Executive Officer Masatoshi Shoji

Executive Officer Yuichi Yamamori

Executive Officer Tomoo Okada

Executive Officer Takayuki Obara

Executive Officer Shunzo Ogawara

Executive Officer Minoru Oda

Executive Officer Makoto Nakanishi

Executive Officer Yoshinori Yokoyama

Executive Officer Shinji Suemasa

Executive Officer Takemi Okamoto

Executive Officer Hitoshi Ikoma

Executive Officer Hiromi Inukai

Executive Officer Minoru Kusano

Executive Officers

Notes: 1. Naoki Ohgo, Shizue Inuzuka and Yoshihisa Suzuki are outside directors.

2. Koji Takata, Yuki Sakurai and Gan Matsui are outside audit & supervisory board members.
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2-1, Kojimachi 5-chome,

Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 102-8503, Japan

Phone: +81-3-5877-5171

Fax: +81-3-5877-5179

http://www.orico.co.jp/

Head Office

March 15, 1951

Date of Establishment

4,456 (Consolidated)

3,658 (Non-Consolidated)

Number of Employees

¥150,028 million

Paid-in Capital

Tokyo Stock Exchange

Stock Exchange Listing

29,966

Number of Shareholders

Authorized:

Outstanding:

1,825,000,000 shares  

1,718,163,703 shares  

Common Stock

Authorized: 

Outstanding: 

140,000,000 shares  

70,000,000 shares  

Preferred Stock

Shareholder

Number of 

shares held

 (Thousands)

Percentage 

of shares held

(%)

Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 836,403 48.68

ITOCHU Corporation 284,049 16.53

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account) 165,637 9.64

Takashi Kotegawa 20,900 1.21

Century Tokyo Leasing Corporation 15,362 0.89

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust Account) 12,398 0.72

Nippon Tochi-Tatemono Co., Ltd. 11,500 0.66

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account 5) 7,837 0.45

FUJITSU LIMITED 7,782 0.45

Chuo Fudosan K.K. 7,675 0.44

Principal Shareholders (Common Stock)

(Millions of yen)

Fiscal 2017 I II III IV

Operating revenues ¥51,492 54,704 53,320 54,177

Operating profit 6,724 10,278 9,842 6,671 

Profit 4,585 9,037 8,869 6,199 

Quarterly Results

Common Stock Price Range

(as of June 30, 2017)

500

400

300

200

100

0

(Yen)

2015Fiscal 2014 2016 2017

500,000

400,000

300,000
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0

(Thousands of shares)
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Trading Volume

45Orient Corporation

Corporate Data / Investor Information
As of March 31, 2017, except where noted



2-1, Kojimachi 5-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 102-8503, Japan   Phone: +81-3-5877-5171    Fax: +81-3-5877-5179    http://www.orico.co.jp/ 



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 225
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.24889
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 225
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.10667
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 350
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /JPN <>
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
      /DestinationProfileSelector /UseName
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MarksOffset 0
      /MarksWeight 0.283460
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /NA
      /PageMarksFile /JapaneseWithCircle
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




